ALCATEL

TEMPORIS IP 200

ADMINISTRATOR'S GUIDE



Temporis IP 200 phone is a full-featured, qualitative SIP solution dedicated to business environment use. Its wide interoperability guarantees seamless integration with a large number of IP PBX and VoIP providers.

Please read through this guide for a better knowledge on available functionalities and configuration capabilities you can have access to with Temporis IP200.

Declaration of Conformity



Hereby, it's declared that this phone is in conformity with the essential requirements and other relevant provisions of the CE, FCC.

CE Mark Warning

This is a class B device, in a domestic environment; this product may cause radio interference, in which case the user may be required to take adequate measures.

WEEE Warning



To avoid the potential effects on the environment and human health as a result of the presence of hazardous substances in electrical and electronic equipment, end users of electrical and electronic equipment should understand the meaning of the crossed-out wheeled bin symbol. Do not dispose of WEEE as unsorted municipal waste and have to collect such WEEE separately.





Table of Contents

Getting Started 7 -		
Packing List 7 -		
Assembling Temporis IP 200 7 -		
Configuration and Registration 10 -		
Basic Configuration via Web Page 10 -		
Basic Configuration using phone keypad Basic Configuration using phone keypad		
Overview 13 -		
Keypad 13 -		
LEDs 14 -		
Icons 15 -		
User Interface 15 -		
Customizing Your Phone 18 -		
General Settings 18 -		
Phone Status 18 -		
Language 19 -		
Time and Date 20 -		
Maximum number of Calls 21 -		
Keypad Lock 22 -		
Logo Customization 25 -		
Audio Settings 26 -		
Volume 26 -		
Ring Tones 26 -		
Codec Selection 29 -		
Tone Settings 30 -		



١	Voice	31 -
[Distinctive Ringing	32 -
Cont	tact Management	33 -
E	Edit/Add/Delete Contacts	33 -
I	Import/Export Contact list	37 -

Basic Call Functions- 39 -

Ou	tgoing calls 39	9 -
	Call Devices 39	9 -
	Call Methods 39	9 -
	Live Dialpad 42	2 -
	Send Key configuration 43	3 -
	Password dial 44	4 -
	Call Completion 40	6 -
	Auto Redial 40	6 -
	Hot Line 48	8 -
	Anonymous call 49	9 -
	Dial Plan 5	1 -
	Replace Rule 5	52 -
	Dial Now 5	53 -
	Dial Now 5 Area Code 5	53 - 54 -
	Dial Now 5 Area Code 5 Forbidden Numbers (Block Out)	53 - 54 - 54 -
Inc	Dial Now	53 - 54 - 54 - 6 -
Inc	Dial Now	53 - 54 - 54 - 6 - 6 -
Inc	Dial Now	53 - 54 - 54 - 6 - 6 -
Inc	Dial Now	53 - 54 - 54 - 6 - 6 - 6 -
Inc	Dial Now	53 - 54 - 54 - 6 - 6 - 6 - 7 -
Inc	Dial Now	53 - 54 - 54 - 6 - 6 - 6 - 7 - 8 -
Inc	Dial Now	53 - 54 - 54 - 6 - 6 - 6 - 7 - 8 - 9 -
Inc	Dial Now	53 - 54 - 54 - 6 - 6 - 6 - 7 - 8 - 9 - 9 - 0 -



Call	log 61 -
	Accessing Call log 62 -
	Accessing Missed Calls list 62 -
	Accessing Dial Calls list 62 -
(Call list items management 63 -
I	Missed call log enable/disable 63 -
Duri	ing an Active Call 64 -
I	Mute 64 -
(Call Hold 65 -
(Call Waiting 65 -
	Handling a waiting call 65 -
	Call Waiting Configuration 65 -
(Call Transfer 67 -
:	3-way Conference 67 -
I	Network Conference 68 -
`	Voicemail 69 -
	Voicemail settings 69 -
	Retrieving your Voicemail messages 70 -

Advanced Functions..... 73 -

- 4 - / 109



Other Settings 79 -
Maintenance Tasks 80 -
User levels 80 -
Administrator Mode 81 -
Reboot 81 -
Reset to Factory 82 -
Configuration Export/Import 83 -
WatchDog 83 -
Action URL/URI 84 -
Firmware Update and Autoprovisioning 85 -
Decryption 86 -
Zero-Active Interface 88 -
System Log Export 89 -
PCAP Trace Export 89 -
Keys configuration 89 -
Send Key configuration 89 -
Programmable keys 90 -
Line keys Configuration 91 -
BLF 92 -
BLF List 93 -
Note: 93 -
Line 93 -
Speed Dial 93 -
Intercom 94 -
URL Record 94 -
Shared Line 95 -
Conference 95 -
Forward 96 -
Transfer 96 -
Hold 97 -
Temporis IP 200 Administrator Guide ed 1.0 - 5 - / 109



	DND	97 -
	Redial	97 -
	Call Return	98 -
	Pick Up	98 -
	Call Park	98 -
	Group Listening	99 -
	Voice Mail	99 -
	DTMF	99 -
	Public Hold	100 -
	Private Hold	100 -
	Group Pick up	101 -
	Paging	101 -
	Record	101 -
	Prefix	102 -
	Zero-Active	102 -
	ACD	102 -
	Local PhoneBook	103 -
Trouble	e shooting	104 -

Appendix A.- 106 -

Line Key configuration menu	106 -
Memory Key configuration menu	108 -



Getting Started

Packing List

The following components are included in your package:

TEMPORIS IP 200

Phone Foot Stand

Wall mount accessories

Handset & Handset Cord

Ethernet Cable

Quick Start Guide

Assembling Temporis IP 200

This section introduces how to assemble the phone with the components in the packing list:

Attach the foot stand or wall mount accessories;

Connect Handset;

Connect Network and Power.

- 7 - / 109



Attach the footstand or wall mount accessories, as shown below:



Connect Handset and Headset, as shown below:





Note: headset is not provided.

Connect Network and Power

You can either connect the phone to the AC Power directly using a power adapter (not supplied) or to a PoE compliant switch or hub. Your system administrator will advise you on which one to use.



Note:

If inline power is provided, do not install AC adapter (not provided). Make sure the Ethernet cable and switch/hub are PoE compliant.

The Internet Port can also be connected to Hub/Switch/IP PBX or other internet devices.

The phone can also share the network connection with other network devices such as PCs. Connect the phone's PC port and computer's network port together using an Ethernet cable.





Configuration and Registration

Some simple configurations are needed to get your phone ready for making calls: network and account information must be correct.

If you are not an administrator, please contact your internet administrator or service provider for more details.

Basic Configuration via Web Page

Temporis IP200 features an embedded web server to help administrators and users configure, manage and use their phone in an intuitive and simple manner. The phone's web server can be accessed with any web browser.

Press OK button on the keypad of the phone to enter the status page and find out your Temporis IP 200 IP address. Enter it (for example <u>http://192.168.1.</u>100) into the address bar of your web browser. The default administrator's login name and password are <u>admin/admin</u>.

Note:

Please locate your PC in the same network segment of your Temporis IP (192.168.1.X) to be able to access the web configuration page. Please consult your system administrator for help.

Network Settings

Choose Network->Internet Port (WAN) .

DHCP: By default the phone attempts to contact a DHCP Server in your network in order to obtain its valid network settings, e.g. IP address, subnet mask, gateway, DNS server, etc.

Static IP Address: If your phone cannot contact a DHCP Server for any reason, you need to enter the network settings manually via Static IP Address. Please contact your internet administrator for more details.

PPPoE: If you are using an xDSL Modem, you may connect your phone to the internet via PPPoE mode. Please contact your ISP for the **User Name** and **Password** for internet access.

Note: Using the wrong network parameters may result in inaccessibility of your phone and may also have an impact on your network performance. Please contact your network administrator.





Account Settings

The phone attempts to register to the SIP server using the account data provided by automatic or manual initialization.

Field	Description
Register Status	It shows the register status of the phone (read only)
Account Active	You can choose on/off to enable/disable the account respectively.
Label	The name showing on the LCD of current device.
Display Name	The local phone name showing on the other phone when calling.
Register Name	Register name provided by ISP.
User Name	User account information, provided by ISP.
Password	Account password provided by ISP.
SIP Server	SIP server address provided by ISP.

Choose Account page. You will find the following parameters:

When all accounts registering fail, the phone will display "No Service" by default.

When the phone reboots, it will register automatically. If many phones register at the same time, for example after a power outage, the SIP server may be affected; admins can set a register power up time so that the phones will register a random time after power up.

Setting power up time via web interface:

Choose network->Advanced-> Random Registration, enter the time in the field and validate with "Confirm".

Note:

Should the IP PBX (SIP registrar) require an authentication, a correct password is needed. Make sure you are using the appropriate input method or enter the password via the web user interface.



Basic Configuration using phone keypad

You will need admin privilege to perform this and other configurations. By default the phone will be in user mode, so you will need to perform a simple procedure to switch to admin mode. Phone will return to user mode after reboot.

Change phone to admin mode: Press MENU \rightarrow 7.**User type**. Press right navigation key until you see "admin" on the screen. Then press the down key to be prompted for the password. It is "admin" by default. Type it and press OK.

Network Settings: Press MENU->3.Settings->2.Advanced->OK. Enter the admin password, and choose Network->WAN Port/PC Port /VLAN/Web Type/802.1x Settings to enter the internet relating configuration page.

Account Settings: Press MENU->3.**Settings**->2.**Advanced**->OK. Enter the admin password, and choose **Accounts**->OK to configure the account settings.

You can refer to the above "Configuring via Web Page" for parameter details.

Note:

The active User Type is shown with an * on the left of display when you enter Menu \rightarrow 7.

User Type menu, like this:

<*user >

Once you finish all admin related tasks you should go back to user mode with the same procedure, or simply reboot the phone.





Overview

Keypad



5 Hold key CONF Conference key 🛱 Aa3 In idle mode : access to phonebook Text input mode : toggle between letter/number In idle mode : access to menu. Back key and hang up MENU ᠫ Ó Line keys ٩ Navigation keys (up,down, left, right) + short cuts to other functions In idle mode : access to redial list ØК Confirm key ര In editing/pre-dialling mode : erase character/digits In communication mode : mute/unmute a cal When ringing, press to reject call (1<1) Access to call transfer ല Headset key Ì Access to voice mail During ringing : increase ringer volume In communication : increase earpiece, headset or handsfree volume ▣ Activate/deactivate handsfree During ringing : decrease ringer volume In communication : decrease earpiece, headset or handsfree volume ◙



LEDs

Table 1 Line Keys

LED Status	Description
Steady green	The account is active
Blinking green	There is an incoming call to the account, or there is a call on hold
Off	The phone is in idle status whatever registered /unregistered

Table 2 Line Keys set to BLF

LED Status	Description
Steady green	The monitored account is in idle status
Fast blinking green	There is an incoming call to the monitored account
Slow blinking green	The monitored account is on an conversation
Off	It is not active as BLF

Table 3 Power Indication LED

LED Status	Description
Steady amber	when new messages or new missed calls When boot process
Blinking amber	When there is an incoming call or when a call is muted
Slow blinking amber	When network is not available or sip server failure
Off	in idle mode



Icons

Temporis IP 200 displays different kinds of icons on its LCD, you can refer to the following table for their meanings:

Icon	Description
Ð	Flashes when the internet is disconnected
~	Missed calls
1	Call in
1	Call out
2aB	Input Method: all letters and numbers
123	Input Method: numbers
abc	Input Method: multi-lingual letters in lower case
ABC	Input Method: multi-lingual letters in upper case
*	Call mute
×	Voicemail
, ₽	Call forward
AA	Auto answer
DND	DND
θ	Keypad Lock
<i>د</i>	In handset mode
6	In headset mode
-	In speaker mode

User Interface

There are two ways to customize specific options on your phone:

Using keypad and display of the phone.

Using Web user interface in an Internet browser from your PC; please refer to "Configuration and Registration" to get into the Web interface.

In many instances, it is possible to use either the phone user interface or the web interface to operate the phone and change settings. Some operations, however, are only possible via phone or web user interface. Please refer to the following table for differences:



Phone Options	Phone UI	Web UI
Status		
IP		\checkmark
MAC		\checkmark
Firmware	\checkmark	\checkmark
Network		\checkmark
Phone		
Accounts		
Call Features		
Forward	\checkmark	
Call Waiting	\checkmark	
Function Keys	\checkmark	
Send Key	\checkmark	
Hot Line	\checkmark	
Anonym Call	\checkmark	
Auto Redial	\checkmark	V
Intercom	\checkmark	
DND	\checkmark	
Call Completion	\checkmark	
Logs Setting	\checkmark	
Basic Phone Functions		
Language	\checkmark	
Time & Date	\checkmark	,
Ring Tone	\checkmark	V
Phone Volume	\checkmark	
Advanced Phone Functions		
Accounts	\checkmark	,
Network	\checkmark	V

- 16 - / 109



Keypad Lock	\checkmark	
Reset Factory	\checkmark	
Set Password	\checkmark	
Set AES Key	\checkmark	
Auto Provision		
Other Features		
Messages		\checkmark
History	\checkmark	\checkmark
Directory		\checkmark
User Mode		

Note:

- 1) The above table only indicates most of phone functions rather than all of them. Please refer to next chapters for more details.
- 2) Some functions are password protected. In this case when you are prompted for a password make sure to introduce one in accordance with active User Type

The default administrator password is **admin**.



Customizing Your Phone

General Settings

Phone Status

You can view the status of your phone using the Phone interface or the Web interface. This option allows you to review: IP MAC Firmware Network: MAC, WAN, LAN, Gateway, DNS, etc Phone: Model, Hardware, Firmware, Product ID and MAC Accounts: The 2 SIP accounts status To check the Phone Status via Phone interface:

Press OK button directly to check the IP.

Use the navigation keys to check the other information.

To view the Phone Status via Web interface:

Open a web browser and input the IP Address of the phone. Enter login and password (default login and password are both "admin"). Status page will be shown directly.



		<u>i na k</u> u na ku na
Account	Network Phone Contr	acts Upgrade Security
Version ?		+ NOTE
Firmware Version	13.60.0.60	Version Shows firmware
Hardware Version	13.0.1.36	version.
Network ?		
WAN Port Type	DHCP	Network
WAN IP Address	192.168.1.231	ports information
Subnet Mask	255.255.255.0	
MAC Address	74-65-D1-00-01-66	
Link Status	Connected	
PC IP Address	0.0.0	
Device Type	Bridge	
DHCP Server Status(PC)	Disabled	

Language

The default Phone interface language is **English**.

It also supports French, Spanish, Dutch, German, Italian, Polish, Portuguese, Turkish, , etc. You can change the language for the phone user interface and the web user interface independently from each other.

Note:

All languages may not be available for selection. The available languages depend on the language packs currently loaded on the IP phone. Please contact your system administrator or technical support for more information about language packs loading.

To change the language via Phone interface:

Press ->3.Settings->1.Basic->1.Language->OK.

*1.English 2.Français

Scroll through the list of available languages.

Press OK button when the desired language is highlighted.

Press \blacksquare key to return to the previous screen.

Web interface language depends on your computer Operative System. It will automatically match the language with your computer and browser, and fall back to English if needed.

- 19 - / 109



Time and Date

Time and date are displayed on Temporis IP200 idle screen. By default the phone will try to obtain them from a preconfigured SNTP server, but you can set them manually if needed. Please contact your system administrator if the time or date are incorrect.

To change Time and Date via the Phone interface:

Press ->3.Settings->1.Basic->2.Time & Date->OK.

*1.SNTP 2.Manual

If SNTP is chosen, the phone will automatically get the time from an NTP Server. Use the up and down navigation keys to highlight the specific options and change parameters to meet your needs. You can set Time Zone, NTP Server1/Server2, and DST respectively. By default GMT+1 and automatic DST are configured.

If Manual is chosen, the time can be set manually. Use the up and down navigation keys to highlight the option and enter the specific date and time.

Press OK button to save your changes. Or press MENU key to return to the previous screen.

To set time format via the Phone interface:

```
Press ->3.Settings->1.Basic->2.Time & Date->3.Time & Date->OK.
```

1.Clock: ▼*24 Hour ►

Use the Left/Right navigation keys to choose a preferred time format: 12 hour or 24 hour.

Press the OK button to save the changes and return to the previous screen.

To change Daylight Saving Time Settings via the Web interface:

1) Go to Choose Phone->Preference->Daylight Saving Time. Select between Enable/Disable/Automatic

2) If you select Enable , then you will need to set Daylight Saving Time period start and end dates.

3) If Automatic is chosen dates will be derived from the content of a table saved within your configuration. This table is named AutoDST.xml and can be changed via provisioning.



			Logout
	Status Account Netv	vork Phone Contacts Upgra	de Security
	Preference Features Function	Keys Action URL Voice Ring Tones	Dial Plan
ALCATEL	WEB Language	English 🥥 ?	
ATUNS	DHCPTime	Disabled 💌	NOTE Time Zone
	Time Zone	+1 Albania(Tirane) 📮 ?	Choose the time
	Primary NTP Server	europe.pool.ntp.org	NTD Commer
	Secondary NTP Server	europe.pool.ntp.org 🤨	Server from which
	Update Interval(seconds)	1000	be retrieved.
	Daylight Saving Time	Automatic 🖌 ?	Update Interval Time between time
	Fixed Type	Disabled Enabled By Week	synchronizations with the NTD server
	Start Month	Automatic	Dauliaht Caulon Time
	Start Day of Week	Sunday 🐙	Activate summer
	Start Week	Last In Month 🚽	time policy.
	Start Hour of Day	2	Manual Time Enable/disable to
	End Month	October 🚽	set time manually,
	End Day of Week	Sunday	Ring Tone Ringtones to be
	End Week	Last In Month 🐙	uploaded must be in wav format (8K
	End Hour of Day	3	sampling rate, mono, 16-bit U-law
	Offset(minutes)	60	compression)
	Manual Time	Disabled 💂 ?	
	Time Format	24 Hour 🗶 ?	
	Live Dialpad	Disabled 😨 🙎	
	Inter Digit Time(1~14)(seconds)	4 ?	
	Flash Hook Time(<800ms)	1 ?	
	Keyboard Lock	Disabled 🗶 ?	
	WatchDog	Enabled	
	Ring Type	Ring2.wav 🗶 Del ?	
	Upload Ringtone	Parcourir	
		Upload Cancel	
	Confirm	Cancel	

Note:

By default the time zone is +1 France. Daylight Saving Time is Automatic.

Maximum number of Calls

In some situations service providers want to limit the number of calls a subscriber is able to send or receive.

- 21 - / 109



Your IP200 has been configured by default to handle 2 simultaneous calls (either incoming, outgoing or a mixture). However you can set this limit to any number up to 20.

To set max number of calls using the web interface:

- 3) Go to Phone->Features->Max simultaneous calls
- 4) Enter the desired value and press Confirm button

Note:

This setting is independent from Call Waiting, which only limits incoming calls when disabled. See Call Waiting chapter for more details.

Keypad Lock

You can lock the keypad of your phone when you are temporarily not using it. This function helps you to protect your phone from unauthorized use. You can lock the following specific keys:

Menu Key: The Menu key cannot be used until unlocked. You cannot access the menu of the phone.

Function Keys: The hard function keys cannot be used until unlocked. You cannot access the MESSAGE, HEADSET, TRANSFER, REDIAL, Speaker, CONFERENCE, HOLD, Navigation Keys, OK button, Mute button, Volume Adjustment button, etc.

All Keys: None of the keys can be used until unlocked. You can only use the phone to answer incoming calls.

Lock&Answer: In this mode you cannot initiate or terminate calls. You will receive calls in auto answer mode. You will also have access to the Menu.

To enable keypad lock via Phone interface:

Press ->3.**Settings**->2.**Advanced**, enter the password, and then press OK button.

Choose 3.Keypad Lock->OK.

Use the left or right navigation keys to highlight the one you want to lock.





Press OK button to active the change, or MENU to return to the previous screen.

The icon $\mathbf{\hat{h}}$ will be displayed on the top right corner of the idle screen.

If you choose **Lock&Answer**, it will display the icon **and AA on the LCD**.

To unlock the phone via Phone interface:

Press key, you are prompted for the password.

Enter the password, and then press OK button, the phone is unlocked.

If you choose **Lock&Answer**, you have to enter -> 3.**Settings**->2.**Advanced**-> 3.**Keypad Lock** interface to disable this option.

To enable keypad lock via Web interface:

Choose Phone->Preference-> Keyboard Lock. Please refer to the instructions above for the different options.



	Status Account Ne	twork Phone	Contacts	Upgrade Security
	Preference Features Function	on Keys Action URL V	oice Ring To	ines Dial Plan
CATEL	WEB Language	English 📮 🤶		10 March 10
ATUNES	DHCPTime	Disabled		Time Zone
	Time Zone	+1 Albania(Tirane)		Choose the time
	Primary NTP Server	europe.pool.ntp.ord		zone you are m.
	Secondary NTP Server	europe.pool.ntp.ord		NTP Server Server from which
	Update Interval(seconds)	1000		time information will be retrieved.
	Daylight Saving Time	Automatic 🖌 🭷		Update Interval
	Fixed Type	C By Date & By Weel	c	synchronizations
	Start Month	March		with the NTP server
	Start Day of Week	Sunday		Daylight Saving Tim Activate summer
	Start Week	Last In Month		time policy.
	Start Hour of Day			Manual Time
	Ead Month	Cottobas		set time manually.
				Ring Tone
	End Day of Week	Sunday 🚽		Ringtones to be uploaded must be in
	End Week	Last in Month w		wav format (8K sampling rate, mono
	End Hour of Day	3		16-bit U-law
	Offset(minutes)	60		compression
	Manual Time	Disabled 👳 ?		
	Time Format	24 Hour 🗶 🤶		
	Live Dialpad	Disabled 👿 🤶		
	Inter Digit Time(1~14)(seconds) 4 ?		
	Flash Hook Time(<800ms)	1 ?		
	Keyboard Lock	Disabled 💂 🤶		
	WatchDog	Menu Key		
	Ring Type	All Keys	el ?	
	Upload Ringtone	Lock&Answer Parco	ourir	

To configure a programmable key as shortcut for keypad lock via Web interface

You can use any of the programmable keys to provide a shortcut to Keypad Lock. Choose Phone->Function Keys->select a programmable key and in the scrolling menu select Keypad lock.

In idle mode, when pressing this key, you're prompted to enter the password and then you enter the keypad lock menu. You can use the same key to unlock.

Note:

1. The default password for lock/unlock is **admin** or **user** depending on the active User Type.

2. Users can make emergency calls when the phone is locked if an emergency number has been configured



Logo Customization

Temporis IP200 can display a textual logo on the idle screen. Maximum length is 15 characters.

Using the web interface choose Phone-> Features-> Use Logo. Select enable or disable in the pull-down menu.

Ringer Device for Headset	Use Speaker 📮 ?	Picture must be in dob format, Black
Headset Sending Volume (1~53)	29	and white or 2 gray
Call rejected response code	486 (Busy here) 📮 ?	
DND Response code	480 (Temporarily not ava 🚽 💡	
DND On Code	<u>?</u>	
DND Off Code	?	
Allow Intercom	Enabled 📮 ?	
Intercom Mute	Disabled 💌 ?	
Intercom Tone	Enabled 📮 ?	
Intercom Barge	Enabled 💌 ?	
Call Completion	Disabled 📿 ?	
Enable Semi-Attended Transfer	Enabled 💌 ?	
Blind Transfer OnHook	Enabled	
Attend Trans OnHook	Enabled 💌	
Transfer on Conference Hang up	Disabled 💂	
Feature Key Synchronisation	Disabled 💌	
Time Out for Dial-now Rule	1	
ACD Auto Available	Disabled 💌	
ACD Auto Available Timer (0~120s)	60	
RFC 2543 Hold	Disabled 🗨	
Use Outbound Proxy In Dialog	Enabled 💌	
Process 180	Enabled	
Logon Wizard	Disabled 🗨	
PswPrefix		
PswLength		
PswDial	Disabled 💌	
SaveCallHistory	Enabled	
Use Logo	Enabled 💂 ?	
Text Logo	Enabled	
Confirm	Cancel	

If "enable" is selected you will be able to enter the text in the "Text Logo" field.

Click Confirm button to save the change.



Audio Settings

Volume

Handset, speaker, headset and ringer volumes can be adjusted independently.

To adjust the volume in idle mode:

Press ->3.**Settings**->1.**Basic**.

Scroll to 4.**Phone Volume**, and press OK button. Select the item you wish to adjust and use \triangledown and \triangle or left and right navigation keys to increase or decrease volume.

Press OK button to save volume change or MENU key to cancel.

To adjust ring volume you can also press igsimed and igsimed a when the phone is in idle status.

To adjust the volume when you are in an active call:

When Handset/Headset/Hands-free mode is activated, press	▼	or 🦨	t t	o adjust
the volume.				

Note:

The volume can only be adjusted via Phone interface.

Ring Tones

You can select the type of the ring tone.

To select Ring Tone Type via Phone interface:

Press ->3.Settings->1.Basic->OK.

Scroll to 3. Ring Tone, and press OK button.

Use the up and down navigation keys to highlight your selection. The tone will be played.

*1. Ring1. wa∨ 2. Ring2. wa∨

- 26 - / 109



Press OK button to save the change or MENU to cancel.

To change Ring Tone Type via Web interface:

Choose Phone->Preference->Ring Type. Highlight your selection in the scroll-down menu and click confirm button to update the change. You can also delete a ring tone by clicking the Delete button.

Communication			
	Status Account Net	work Phone Contacts Upgra	de Security
	Preference Features Function	Keys Action URL Voice Ring Tones	Dial Plan
ALCATEL	WEB Language	English 🗶 ?	NOTE
TATUNGS	DHCP Time	Disabled 💌	Time Zone
	Time Zone	+1 Albania(Tirane)	Choose the time
	Primary NTP Server	europe.pool.ntp.org ?	NTO Convor
	Secondary NTP Server	europe.pool.ntp.org	Server from which time information will
	Update Interval(seconds)	1000 ?	be retrieved.
	Daylight Saving Time	Automatic 🖌 ?	Update Interval Time between time
	Fixed Type	C By Date 🕼 By Week	synchronizations with the NTP server.
	Start Month	March	Davlight Saving Time
	Start Day of Week	Sunday	Activate summer
	Start Week	Last In Month 🚽	time poncy.
	Start Hour of Day	2	Enable/disable to
	End Month	October	set time manually.
	End Day of Week	Sunday 📮	Ring Tone Ringtones to be
	End Week	Last In Month 🚽	uploaded must be in wav format (8K
	End Hour of Day	3	sampling rate, mono, 16-bit U-law
	Offset(minutes)	60	compression)
	Manual Time	Disabled 💂 ?	
	Time Format	24 Hour 🗬 🙎	
	Live Dialpad	Disabled 🥃 ?	
	Inter Digit Time(1~14)(seconds)	4 ?	
	Flash Hook Time(<800ms)	1 ?	
	Keyboard Lock	Disabled 💽 ?	
	WatchDog	Enabled 💽	
	Ring Type	Ring2.wav 🗨 Del ?	
	Upload Ringtone	Ring1.wav Ring2.wav Ring3.wav	
	Confirm	Ring4.wav Ring5.wav Ring6.wav Ring7.wav Ring8.wav	

Note:

System ring tones cannot be deleted.

To upload a new Ring Tone via Web interface:

Temporis IP 200 Administrator Guide

- 27 - / 109



Choose Phone->Preference->Upload Ringtone.

Click Browse button to choose your ring tone file.

Click Upload button to upload the file.

Note: The ring tone file format must be in 16bits WAV format (via Ulaw Compression), 8K sample rate (monophony). Blank or other special characters cannot be included in the file name.

To specify ring tones for a specific account via Web interface:

Choose Account->Basic->Ring Type option, and highlight the preferred one for the chosen account in the scroll-down menu, then click confirm button to update the change.





Codec Selection

Temporis IP200 supports the following voice codecs:

G.722, G.723_53, G.723_63, G.726-16, G.726-24, G.726-32, G.726-40, G.729, PCMU and PCMA

You can enable/disable the desired codecs via Web interface. Please contact your System Administrator for more details about the codecs.

To enable/disable the codecs via web interface:

Choose Account->Codecs.



	Statu	Account	Network	Phone	Contacts	Upgrade	Logout Security
ALCATEL	Account Basic >>		Account 1	T		NOTE Display Na SIP service	me subscriber
	Codecs >> ?	Disable codecs G723_53 G723_63 G726-16 G726-24	Enable co PCMU PCMA G729 G722	idecs		name user display. Register N SIP servic used for a	i for Caller ID ame :e subscriber ID uthentication.
		G726-32 G726-40	>>>			User acco VoIP serv PBX admin NAT Trave Control ST settings.	unt provided by ice provider or h rsal FUN server
	Advanced >>	Confirm	C	incel		Proxy Req Relevant f only. If yo a Nortel s should be com.norte	uire or Nortel server u wish to login to erver, value networks.firewall
						Codecs Select coo priority. Advanced Administr parameter	lec types and ator oriented s.

Use the navigation keys to highlight the desired one in the Enable/Disable Codecs list, and press the >> / << to move to the other list.

Click Confirm button to save the change.

Note:

Codec Selection can only be done via Web interface.

Tone Settings

Your IP200 allows you to configure how the following tones used for subscriber signaling will sound like:

- Dial
- Ring Back
- Busy
- Congestion
- Call Waiting
- Dial Recall
- Record



- Info
- Stutter
- Message
- Auto Answer

IP200 includes preconfigured tones for a large number of countries. However you can generate a fully customized tone set by defining their frequency and duration.

the frequency and time period of all the following tones:

To configure your tones via Web interface:

- 1) Go to Phone->Tones.
- 2) Select your country or Custom
- 3) If Custom is selected, enter the frequency(Hz) and time period(in ms) as follows:

Frequency /Time Period (for example 400/200).

4) Press Confirm button to save the changes, cancel to cancel the changes.

Note:

- 1. Please contact your system administrator for more information about the frequency and time period parameters. You can enter up to 8 groups for each tone.
- 2. Frequency set to 0, is interpreted as a silent period.

Voice

This section allows you to configure some parameters related with Voice management using the Web interface.

- 1) Go to Phone->Voice.
- 2) Set the following parameters:

Parameter	Description
Echo canceller	Defines whether to enable the echo canceller.
VAD	Voice activity detection (VAD), also known as speech activity detection or speech detection, is a technique used in speech processing in which the presence or absence of human speech is



	detected.
CNG	A comfort noise generator (CNG) is a program used to generate background noise for voice communications during periods of silence that occur during the course of conversation.
JITTER BUFFER	It is a shared data area where voice packets can be collected, stored, and sent to the voice processor evenly to overcome variable delay introduced by networks, known as jitter.
Туре	To choose the type of JITTER BUFFER, Adaptive or Fixed.
Delay	To set Jitter Buffer Min Delay, Max Delay and Normal Delay parameters.

	Status	Account Network	Phone Contacts	Upgrade Security
	Preference	Features Function Key	Action URL Voice Ring	Tones Dial Plan
ALCATEL	Echo Cancellation ?			• NOTE
1 Aures		Echo canceller VAD	Enabled 🖌 ?	VAD Voice Activity Detection
	JITTER BUFFER ?	CNG	Enabled 💌 ?	CNG Comfort Noise
		Type Min Delay Max Delay Normal Delay Confirm	Cancel	Generation. JITTER BUFFER Data area where voice packets can be collected, stored, and sent to the voice processor in an evenly manner to compensate for variable packet delay.

3) Press Confirm button to save your changes, or Cancel to delete them.

Distinctive Ringing

The Ring section in the web gui allows to configure how the phone will work with "Distinctive ringing" server feature.

You can set the values of the "Alert-info" header for an incoming call to determine which ring tone will be played.

Up to 10 distinctive ring tones can be set by configuring "Internal ringer text". This field will have to be filled in with the expected content of the Alert-info header in the received "INVITE".



To edit the Ring option via Web interface:

1) Go to Phone->Ring.

		-47			H- 14	- 1	1.0	
	Status	Account	Network	Phone	Con	tacts	Upgrad	le Security
	Preference	Features	Function Keys	Action URL	Voice	Ring	Tones	Dial Plan
ATEL	1	Internal Ringer T	ext		1			
ATLINES		Internal Ringer F	ile	Ring1.wav				NOTE
	2	Internal Ringer T	ext					
		Internal Ringer F	ile	Ring1.wav	Ţ			
	з	Internal Ringer T	ext					
		Internal Ringer F	ile (Ring1.wav	Ţ			
	4	Internal Ringer T	ext [
		Internal Ringer F	ile [Ring1.wav	-			
	5	Internal Ringer T	ext [
		Internal Ringer F	ile [Ring1.wav	-			
	6	Internal Ringer T	ext [
		Internal Ringer F	ile	Ring1.wav	-			
	7	Internal Ringer T	ext [
		Internal Ringer F	ile [Ring1.wav	-			
	8	Internal Ringer T	ext [
		Internal Ringer F	ile [Rîng1.wav	-			
	9	Internal Ringer T	ext (
		Internal Ringer F	ile [Ring1.wav	-			
	10	Internal Ringer T	ext [
		Internal Ringer F	ile [Ring1.wav	-			

- 2) Set Internal Ringer Text to match the content of the Alert-Info header
- 3) Set Internal Ringer File: select ring tone to be used for that value of Alert-Info.
- 4) Click Confirm button to save the changes.

Contact Management

Edit/Add/Delete Contacts

Temporis IP200 features a 300 entries local phonebook and 10 additional speed dial keys. .

With the local directory you can:

- add,

- 33 - / 109



- edit,

- delete,

- dial,

- search for a contact in this directory.

-create groups of contacts

Phonebook includes Directory and Blacklist.

. Directory . Blacklist

To add a contact via Phone interface:

Press \square as or \square ->6. **Directory**-> 1. **Directory**.

Press OK button.

Press OK button to enter into the directory, press UP navigation key to select ADD, Press OK button, enter Name, press down navigation key to enter phone number of the

contact via the keypad. Use the Aa3 key to select between numeric and upper/lower case alphanumeric modes.

Press down navigation key to set and choose a special ring tone for the contact.

If you want to assign this contact to a group, use the down navigation key to select the group.

Press OK button to add the contact, or MENU key to cancel the change.

To add a Group via Phone interface:

Press Aa3 or ->6.Directory-> 1.Directory

Use left/right navigation key to choose **AddGroup**, press OK button to enter to the Add Group page.

Enter the group name and choose associated ring tone.

Press OK button to save.



1.Contact Lis₄▼ AddGroup

To configure the speed dial keys via Phone Interface:

Press ->2. Features->2. Function Keys->2. Memory Keys

Use the up and down navigation keys to select the key on which you want to store a contact number, press OK key to confirm

Use the right and left navigation keys to select **Speed Dial**, then use the up and down keys to select **Account**, use the left or right navigation keys to if you want to assign this speed dial keys to a specific account

Then use the right and left navigation keys to select **Value**, enter the desired number and press OK key to confirm.

Note: in idle mode, with dial tone or during a conversation if you make a long press on the key, it will automatically call the contact stored on the key.

To edit/delete a contact via Phone interface:

Press Aa3 or ->6.Directory.

Press OK button twice.

Use the Up/Down navigation key to highlight the contact you want to edit/delete, then press left/right navigation keys to select Edit/Del page and press OK button.

gjd	Edit
NULL	<u> </u>

Make the desired changes, press OK button, or press MENU return to previous menu.

To move a contact to the Blacklist via Phone interface:

If you add a contact to the blacklist your phone will automatically reject all calls from this contact.

Press Aa3 or ->6. Directory.

Press OK button twice.

Use the Up/Down navigation key to highlight the contact you want to move to blacklist,

- 35 - / 109



then press left/right navigation keys to select M2B page.

Press OK button, or press MENU to return to previous menu.

A warning message will ask for confirmation to move the contact.

Press OK button to confirm the operation, or press the MENU button to return to the directory

Manage Blacklist via Web interface:

Choose Contacts->Black List

		-			-1-8-8-		10-	Logout
		Status	Account	Network	Phone	Contacts	Upgrade	Security
			Local	Phone Book B	lack List Phi	one Call Info		
ALCATEL	Black List					Н	ingup .	
ATUNES	Index	Name	Office Num	Mobile Num	Other Num	Account	Г 1	NOTE
	1	tja	632			Auto	Г. ⁰⁴	acklistnote
	2						Г	
	з						F.	
	4						Г	
	5						Г	
	6						Г	
	7						E .	
	8						F	
	9						Г	
	10							
	Page: 1 💌	Prev	Next	Move To Conta	cts	Delete All	Del	
	Name		1					
	Numb	er						
	Mobile	e Num						
	Other	Nium	-					
	Accou	int	Aut	0				
		Add	Edit		Search			

To move a contact from Call Log to Contacts via Phone interface:

Press History->OK, or use the down key shortcut

Use the navigation keys to highlight a record, then press the edit page.

To add/delete/edit the Contact list via Web interface:

Go to Contacts \rightarrow Local Phonebook. Fill in name and number and press Add


	St	atus	Account	Netwo	rk Phon	Col	ntacts U	Jpgrade Security
LCATEL	Contacts All C	ontacts .		Local Phone Bo	Black Lis	t Phone C	all Info Hanou	10
LUATEL	Index Na	me	Office Num	Mobile Num	Other Num	Account	Groups	NOTE
ATLINES	1 da	niel	513	income mann	o the Hom	Auto	r croops	Add Cashada
	2 Ge	irde	514			Auto	r	Fill in contact
	3 io	se	123456			Auto	ī	information. User
	4 t	а	632			Auto	Г	should not leave
	5 w	ad	-			Auto	Г	1
	6 w	πt				Auto	r	Delete Contact
	7						Г	Select the contact
	8						Г	the grid you want to
	9						Г	press the Delete
	10						F	button to submit.
	Page: 1 🖌	Ree	Nex	t Move T	o BlackList	De	lete All Del	
			- 17 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1					Import
					Group Informa	tion		Browse and upload
	Contacts							The Loss Loss W. D. T. L. Prov. Property on Br
	Contacts				Groups			file in XML format.
	Contacts Name	E			Groups	Auto		nie in XML format.
	Contacts Name Number				Groups Ring	Auto		Export Export button
	Contacts Name Number Mobile Num	n [Groups Ring Add Edit	Auto Del Dele	te All	Export Export button downloads Contact
	Contacts Name Number Mobile Num Other Num	n [Groups Ring Add Edit.	Auto Del Dele	te All	file in XML format. Export Export button downloads Contact into an xml file.
	Contacts Name Number Mobile Nun Other Nun Account	n	uto		Groups Ring Add Edit Please select C	Auto Del Dele ontacts file	te All	file in XML format. Export Export button downloads Contact into an xml file.
	Contacts Name Number Mobile Nun Other Nun Account Ring	n [uto s		Groups Ring Add Edit: Please select C	Auto Del Dele ontacts file Parcourir	te All	file in XML format. Export Export button downloads Contact into an xml file.
	Contacts Name Number Mobile Nun Other Nun Account Ring Groups		uto uto lot In Group		Groups Ring Add Edit. Please select C Import XML	Auto Del Dele ontacts file Parcourir Export XML	te All	file in XML format. Export Export button downloads Contact into an xml file.

To search a contact via Phone interface:

Press the key to enter the contact list.

Enter the 1^{st} letter of the contact name and press OK button. Contact list will be searched for matching records.

Import/Export Contact list

Import/Export Contact List via Web interface:

Choose Contacts->Local Phone Book.





		Status	Account	Networ	k Phon		ntacts	Upgrade	Security
				Local Phone Bo	ok Black Lis	t Phone C	all Info		
ALCATEL	Contacts	All Contact	s 🜉 🙎				Har	ngup	
ATUNKS	Index 1 2	Name daniel George	Office Num <u> 513</u> 514	Mobile Num	Other Num	Account Auto	Groups		Add Contact
	2 3 4 5	jose tja wad	<u>123456</u> <u>632</u>			Auto Auto Auto			information. User should not leave contact name blank.
	6 7 8 9	wmt				Auto			Delete Contact Select the contact in the grid you want to delete, and then press the Delete button to submit.
	Page: 1 Conta	acts	Prev Nex	t Move n	Group Informa	tion	ilete All L		Import Browse and upload a file in XML format.
	Nami Numi Mobi	e ber le Num			Groups Ring Add Edit	Auto Del Dele	te All		Export Export button downloads Contacts
	Acco Ring Grou	ps	Auto Auto Not In Group		Please select C	Parcouri	<u></u>]		
		Add	Edit Searc		Import CSV	Parcourir Export CSV			

Browse to select your contact list file in .XML or .csv format, and then click Import button. The imported contact lists will be shown in the directory.

Click the Export button to export the contact list.

Note:

- 5) Import/Export Contact List can be only set via Web interface.
- 6) You can export your contact list to get a template you will later use to import



Basic Call Functions

Outgoing calls

Call Devices

You can make a phone call via the following devices:

Pick up the handset, 🌜 icon will be shown on the idle screen.

Press 🕒 button, icon 🖤 will be shown on the idle screen.

Press \bigcirc button if the headset is connected to the Headset Port. The icon \bigcirc will be shown on the idle screen. This is a toggle key. Pressing it again will unselect headset as audio device.

Note:

1.-You can dial the number first, and then choose the device you will use for your call.

2.-If headset mode is on, you will need to press OK or end of dialing key to launch your calls

Call Methods

From phone interface:

There are several ways to initiate a call:

Press an available line button and dial the number you want to call, or

Dial a number and select the audio device (remember that if you have chosen headset, you will have to press OK)

Go to Directory, use the navigation keys to select the desired contact, or

- 39 - / 109



Press Key to enter the call log interface, then use the navigation keys to make your selection (press Left/Right button to chose All Calls, Missed Calls, Dialed Calls, Received Calls and Forwarded Calls) or

Press 🏾 🏠 button to enter the Dialed Calls interface, then choose a record to dial out or

Press a Line key which has been set as speed dial button or

Long press on a digit key that has been set as speed dial key

Then press the \bigcirc button to dial out if necessary.

To terminate a call you can:

- 7) press the key or
- 8) If you are in handset mode, replace the handset on hook or
- 9) If you are in handsfree mode, press the SPEAKER key

Note:

Please see Live Dialpad, Dial plan and End of dialing key sections for more possibilities in terms of launching the call

Click- to-dial using web interface:

Go to Contact->Local Phone Book/BlackList and click on the number you want to call. The phone will dial out automatically. Default account will be used.



	-	× -		a service	-	•	1	1.	Logout
		Status	Account	Networ	k Phon	e Cor	ntacts	Upgrade	Security
				Local Phone Bo	Black Lis	t Phone C	ail Infe		
ALCATEL	Contacts	All Contact	s 🙀 🤦				Han	qup	
ATUNG	Index 1	Name daniel	Office Num <u>513</u>	Mobile Num	Other Num	Account Auto	Groups	Г Г	NOTE Add Contact
	2 3 4	George jose wad	<u>514</u> <u>123456</u>			Auto Auto Auto			Fill in contact information. User should not leave contact name blank.
	6 7 8 9	WILL				Auto			Delete Contact Select the contact in the grid you want to delete, and then
	10 Page: 1 Conta	acts	Prev. Nex	t. Move Te	BlackList Group Informa	De	lete All D		Import Browse and upload a
	Nami Numi	e ber			Groups Ring	Auto	Ţ		Export
	Mobi Othe	le Num r Num			Add Edit	Del Dele	te All		Export button downloads Contacts into an xml file.
	Acco Ring	unt	Auto Auto		Please select C	Parcourir			
	0,00	Add	Edit Search	1	INPORT ANL	Parcourir			
					Import CSV	Export CSV			

Or choose Contact->Phone Call Info, enter the number in the Dial a Number box and select the line from the Outgoing Identity list. Then click the dial button to call out.

Or choose Contact->Phone Call Info, click the number which you want to dial out from the call list, the phone will dial out using default account.





		1					10	Loqout
		Status		Account Network	k Phone	Contacts	Upgrade	e Security
ALCATEL	Call Pa	nel		Local Phone Boo	DK BISCK LISE	Phone Call Info		
A		Dial	a Numbe	ar	Dia	I Hangup		
1 J Minto		Outgoin	g Identit	y 511@10.24.20.9				* NOTE
	Call Lis	+						
	Dialed	list						
	Index	Date	Time	Local Identity	Name	Number		
	1	Tues 5 Apr	15:57	511@10.24.20.91	tia	632@10.24.20.91	-	
	2	Tues 5 Apr	15:44	511@10.24.20.91		6@10.24.20.91		
	з	Tues 5 Apr	15:25	511@10.24.20.91		5@10.24.20.91		
	4	Tues 5 Apr	15:25	511@10.24.20.91	George	514@10.24.20.91		
	5	Tues 5 Apr	15:24	511@10.24.20.91	jose	123456@10.24.20.91		
	6	Tues 5 Apr	15:12	511@10.24.20.91	George	514@10.24.20.91	-	
	Missed	List						
	Index	Date	Time	Local Identity	Name	Number	-	
	1	Thur 24 Feb	14:54	511@10.24.20.59	John	511@10.24.20.59	*	
	2	Thur 24 Feb	14:38	511@10.24.20.59	Ringo	<u>515@10.24.20.59</u>		
	з	Thur 27 Jan	01:54	511@192.168.1.150	daniel	<u>513@192.168.1.150</u>	-	
	Receive	ed List						
	Index	Date	Time	Local Identity	Name	Number		
	1	Mon 28 Feb	16:21	511@10.24.20.59	George	514@10.24.20.59	1	
	2	Mon 28 Feb	16:20	511@10.24.20.59	George	<u>514@10.24.20.59</u>		
	з	Mon 28 Feb	16:19	511@10.24.20.59	George	514@10.24.20.59	Ŧ	
	Forwar	ded List						
	Index	Date	Time	Local Identity	Name	Number	×	
							Ŧ	

To terminate calls initiated with click-to-dial you can either use phone interface or click the Hang up button in the web page.

Live Dialpad

This setting defines whether dialed digits will be sent out automatically after a timeout or not. In that case it will be necessary to press OK or End of dialing key for dialing process to be completed.

This function can only be set via the Web interface, with admin/var rights:

- 1) Go to Phone->Preference->Live Dialpad.
- 2) Enable or disable it in the pull-down menu.
- 3) Click Confirm button to save the change.



	Status Account Netv	work Phone Contacts Upgrad	de Security		
	Preference Features Function	Keys Action URL Voice Ring Tones	Dial Plan		
ALCATEL	WEB Language	English 📮 ?	ANOTE		
TATLINGS	DHCP Time	Disabled 💂	Time Zone		
	Time Zone	+1 Albania(Tirane) 📮 💡	Choose the time		
	Primary NTP Server	europe.pool.ntp.org	NTD Secure		
	Secondary NTP Server	europe.pool.ntp.org	Server from which		
	Update Interval(seconds)	1000 ?	be retrieved.		
	Daylight Saving Time	Automatic 💂 ?	Update Interval Time between time		
	Fixed Type	C By Date By Week	synchronizations with the NTP server		
	Start Month	March	Dawlight Spuigs Time		
	Start Day of Week	Sunday 🖵	Activate summer		
	Start Week	Last In Month 🚽	Manual Time		
	Start Hour of Day	2	Manual time Enable/disable to		
	End Month	October 🚽	set time manually.		
	End Day of Week	Sunday 🚽	Ring Tone Ringtones to be uploaded must be in way format (8K		
	End Week	Last In Month 🚽			
	End Hour of Day	3	sampling rate, mono,		
	Offset(minutes)	60	compression)		
	Manual Time	Disabled 💂 ?			
	Time Format	24 Hour 🖌 ?			
	Live Dialpad	Disabled 💂 ?			
	Inter Digit Time(1~14)(seconds)	Enabled ?			
	Flash Hook Time(<800ms)	1 ?			
	Keyboard Lock	Disabled 🥃 ?			
	WatchDog	Enabled 💂			
	Ring Type	Ring8.wav 🗶 Del 💡			
	Upload Ringtone	Parcourir			
		Upload Cancel			

Send Key configuration

Admins can set a specific button ("#" or "*") as the send key. If this feature is enabled, once you've dialed the desired number, you can press this send key to call your correspondent immediately.

To set the send key via the IP phone interface:

- 1) Make sure active User Type is admin or var
- 2) Press ->2.Features->4.Send Key-and press OK button to enter the configuration page.

ed 1.0





- 3) Press the Left/Right navigation keys to choose a button that you want to use as the send key: "#", "*", or disable this option. Note that currently active option has an "*" on the left
- 4) Press the OK button to save the changes, or MENU to discard.

To set the send key via the Web interface:

- 1) Choose Phone->Features-> Send Key.
- 2) Highlight your desired option in the pull-down menu, then click confirm button to save your change, or cancel to discard.

			Logout
	Status Account Netw	ork Phone Contacts	Upgrade Security
	Preference Features Function	Ceys Action URL Voice Ring	Tones Dial Plan
ALCATEL	Forward: ?		- NOTE
T ATLINKS	Always	C on C off	Forward
	Target	2	Allows you to divert
	On Code	2	another phone
	Off Code	2	number, using SIP responses or feature
	Busy	Con Coff	codes,
	Target	2	Target
	On Code	2	Number to which
	Off Code	2	be forwarded.
	No Answer	C On C Off	On Code
	After Ring Time(seconds)	10 📮 ?	Code that will be
	Target	2	sent to the sip
	On Code	2	this feature.
	Off Code	?	Off Code
	General Information:		Code that will be
	Max Simultaneous Calls	3	sent to the sip server to deactivate
	Coll Interior	Eashlad 0	this feature.
	Call walking		Call Waiting
	Call Waiting Tone	Enabled 📄 ?	If Call Waiting is enabled your phone
	Auto Redial	Disabled 💂 ?	will be capable to
	Send Key	= 🥥	accept other
	Reserve # in User Name	Disabled	during conversation.
	Button Sound		Send Key Select * or # as the
	Send Sound	Enabled	end of dialing (send)
	Hotline Number	2	кеу,
	Hotline Delay	4	Hotline Number Hot line number will be dialed

Password dial

This feature is dedicated to environments in which a password or confidential billing code has to be dialed to access other extensions or external numbers.

- 44 - / 109



In order to keep this code confidential it will be masked on the screen if dialed digits start with a certain prefix. When an entered number is beginning with the password prefix (PswPrefix field), the N subsequent numberswill be hidden as *, where N stands for the value entered in the PswLength field. For example: if PswPrefix is set to 3, and PswLength is 2, when you dial 34567 the display will show 3**67.

Set password dial via web interface:

Choose phone->features->PswDial, in the pull-down menu, choose enable.

Enter the password prefix in the PswPrefix field

Enter the Length in the PswLength field.

Click the confirm box to save the changes.

Intercom Mute	Disabled	-	?	
Intercom Tone	Enabled	Ţ	?	
Intercom Barge	Enabled	-	?	
Call Completion	Disabled	Ţ	?	
Enable Semi-Attended Transfer	Enabled	-	?	
Blind Transfer OnHook	Enabled	Ţ		
Attend Trans OnHook	Enabled	-		
Transfer on Conference Hang up	Disabled	-		
Feature Key Synchronisation	Disabled	-		
Time Out for Dial-now Rule	1			
ACD Auto Available	Disabled	-		
ACD Auto Available Timer (0~120s)	60			
RFC 2543 Hold	Disabled	-		
Use Outbound Proxy In Dialog	Enabled	-		
Process 180	Enabled	-		
Logon Wizard	Disabled	-		
PswPrefix				
PswLength				
PswDial	Disabled	-		
SaveCallHistory	Disabled Enabled]		
Use Logo	Enabled	Ţ	?	
Text Logo	-Orange Grou	ip-		
Confirm	Cancel	1		



Call Completion

Call completion on Busy Subscriber (CCBS), is a supplementary service which allows a user to be notified when a busy called party has become available.

Should you enable this feature, it will be invoked whenever a called party returns a busy response code.

You need admin or VAR rights to enable/disable this feature.

Your IP PBX or server needs to allow this service.

To configure Call Completion via phone interface:

Make sure the active User Type is admin or var. If not, please change user mode as explained in "Configuration and Registration" chapter.

Press ->2.**Features**->10.**Call Completion** to enter the configuration page.

Use Left/Right navigation keys to choose Enable/disable. Note the active value will be marked with an "*".

Press the OK to save your changes.

To configure Call Completion via phone interface:

- 10)Go to Phone > Features > Call Completion
- 11)Select desired status (Enabled/disabled) and press Confirm to save your changes.

Auto Redial

Auto redial is a feature that automatically redials a busy number a fixed number of times before giving up.

Purpose is similar to Call Completion, but the implementation is purely local and hence is available in all scenarios without server support.

To set auto redial via the IP phone interface:

- 1) Make sure active User Type is admin or var
- 2) Press ->2.Features->6.Auto Redial-> OK button to enter the configuration page.



- 3) Use left and right navigation keys to enable/disable the auto redial function.
- 4) Press down navigation key to set redial interval. It is measured in seconds.

- 46 - / 109



- 5) Press down navigation key to set the number of times redial will take place.
- 6) Press OK button to save the changes.

Note:

When Auto redial is enabled, if your phone receives a Busy response for an outgoing call, you will be prompted if you wish to Autoredial or not. If you press Cancel softkey or do not press any keys for 5 seconds the phone will return to idle interface and Auto redial will not take place.

To set auto redial via the Web interface:

- 1) Go to Phone->Features->Auto Redial.
- 2) Choose Enabled or Disabled in the pull-down menu
- 3) Click Confirm button to save yourchanges or Cancel to discard.

	💶 🎙 🔳 Prostance 👔 💭 🖉 🕬		Lopout
	Status Account Netw	ork Phone Contacts	Upgrade Security
	Preference Features Function H	Keys Action URL Voice Ring To	ines Dial Plan
ALCATEL	Forward: ?		→ NOTE
T ATUNG	Always	C On C Off	Forward
	Target	3	Allows you to divert
	On Code	3	another phone
	Off Code	2	number, using SIP
	Busy	C On (Off	codes.
	Target	?	Tarnet
	On Code	2	Number to which
	Off Code	2	incoming calls will be forwarded.
	No Answer	Con Coff	
	After Ring Time(seconds)	10 🥊 ?	Code that will be
	Target	2	sent to the sip
	On Code	2	this feature.
	Off Code	2	Off Code
	General Information:		Code that will be sent to the sip
	Max Simultaneous Calls	3	server to deactivate
	Call Waiting	Enabled 💽 ?	ciris rescure.
	Call Waiting Tone	Enabled 💂 ?	Call Waiting If Call Waiting is
	Auto Redial	Disabled 📮 🤶	will be capable to
	Send Key	Disabled ?	accept other incoming calls
	Reserve # in User Name	Enabled	during conversation.
	Button Sound	Enabled	Send Key Select [*] or # as the
	Send Sound	Enabled	end of dialing (send)
	Hotline Number	123 ?	Hotline Number
	Hotline Delay	4	Hot line number will be dialed





Hot Line

Hot Line allows your phone to dial a number automatically if it has been off hook for a specified time period and no keys have been pressed. Both destination number and timeout can be configured.

The service is enabled if Hot Line Number has been configured.

To set the hot line number via the IP phone interface:

Press ->2.**Features**->5.**Hot Line** OK button to enter the configuration page.

Enter the hot line number and press up/down navigation key to select HotLine Delay. Set the Hot Line Delay (default is 4seconds), then press the OK button to save the changes.

To set the Hot Line via the Web interface:

Go to Phone->Features.

Input the Hotline Number and Hotline Delay, and then click Confirm button to save your changes.



	Status Account Netw	ork Phone Contacts	Upgrade Security
	Preference Features Function	Keys Action URL Voice Ring	Tones Dial Plan
ALCATEL	Forward: ?		- NOTE
nunes	Always Target On Code Off Code Busy Target On Code Off Code No Answer After Ring Time(seconds) Target	Con Coff Con Coff Con Coff 10 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	Forward Allows you to divert incoming calls to another phone number, using SIP responses or feature codes. Target Number to which incoming calls will be forwarded. On Code Code that will be sent to the sip
	Oπ Code Off Code General Information: Max Simultaneous Calls	2 3 5	Code that will be sent to the sip server to deactivate this feature.
	Call Waiting Call Waiting Tone Auto Redial Send Key Reserve # in User Name	Enabled ? Disabled ? Disabled ?	Call Waiting If Call Waiting is enabled your phone will be capable to accept other incoming calls during conversation.
	Reserve - in Oser Name Button Sound Send Sound Hotline Number	Enabled	Send Key Select * or = as the end of dialing (send) key.
	Hotline Delay	4	Hotline Number Hot line number will be dialed

Anonymous call

Anonymous call, also known as Caller ID restriction, allows you to request the network to hide your subscriber identity when you are performing outgoing calls.

Temporis IP200 supports Permanent Caller ID restriction, meaning that while enabled all calls will request to be anonymous and you need to disable if you want your identity to be transmitted. This service can be performed locally, or by sending an activation code to the network.

Additionally Temporis IP200 allows you to automatically reject anonymous incoming calls.

These services can be managed through both phone and Web interfaces ar

To set Anonymous call via phone interface:

1) Press ->2.Features->5.Anonym Call->OK button to enter the configuration page.





1.	Li	ne	ID:	
◄	Li	ne	1	►

- 2) Use left or right navigation keys to select the account to be anonymous, you can choose the Line ID.
- 3) Press down navigation key to display Anonym call, then press left or right navigation keys to enable/disable the anonymous call function.
- 4) If you want to perform this function locally, press OK to save your changes.
- 5) If you would like to activate this function in your service provider please press down key and enter the Anonym On Code and Anonym Off Code. Whenever you enable/disable the anonymous call function on your phone, it will automatically send these codes to the server.
- 6) Press OK to save your changes, or MENU to cancel

To set Anonymous call rejection using phone interface:

- 1) Enter Anonymous call menu as explained above
- 2) Press the up or down navigation keys to enter the Rejection page
- 3) Press right or left navigation keys to enable/disable Anonymous Call Rejection function.
- 4) If you would like to use your service provider to get this service, please press the down key and enter the Reject On Code and Reject Off Code. Whenever you enable/disable the Rejection option on your IP phone, it will automatically send these codes to the server.

Note:

- 1. To manage Anonymous Calls and Rejection codes you need to have admin or var rights. Check active User Type before attempting to configure using phone interface.
- 2. Anonymous Call Rejection is only available for the current default account.

Press OK to save your changes, or MENU to cancel.

To set Anonymous Call Services using the Web interface:

- 1) Go to Account-> Basic-> Anonymous Call and perform necessary changes. Please refer to the instructions above for details.
- 2) Click the Confirm button to save the changes, or Cancel to discard.



-	Status Account No	etwork Phone	Contacts	Upgrade Security
ACCOUNT		Account 1		
ATLINGS				MOTE
Basic >> Codecs > Advanced	Register Status Account Active Label Display Name Register Name User Name Password SIP Server Enable Outbound Proxy Server Outbound Proxy Server Transport Backup Outbound Proxy Server NAT Traversal STUN Server Voice Mail Proxy Require Anonymous Call On Code Off Code Missed call log Auto Answer Ring Type	Registered On C Off Ext 511 John 511 511 inverses 10.24,20.91 Disabled P UDP isabled P UDP isabled Common Como	ort 5060 ort 5060 ort 5060 ort 3478	SIP service subscriber name used for Caller ID display. Register Name SIP service subscriber ID used for authentication. User Name User account provided by. VoIP service provider or PBX admin. NAT Traversal Control STUN server settings. Proxy Require Relevant for Nortel server only. If you wish to login to a Nortel server, value should be: com.nortelnetworks.firewall Codecs Select codec types and priority. Advanced Administrator oriented parameters.

Dial Plan

A dial plan establishes the expected number and pattern of digits for a telephone number. This includes country codes, access codes, area codes and all combinations of dialed digits.

Dial plans can be used for least cost routing, dialing convenience or to prevent users from calling specific numbers or groups of numbers.

Temporis IP 200 supports various types of elements related to dial plan: replace rules, dial now entries, area code management and forbidden numbers. All of them require admn or var privilege.



Replace Rule

A replace rule is a dial plan item which enables automatic replacement of a digit string by another. For example if you set the *Prefix* as 0 and *Replace* as 0033 (France country code), when you dial 0670200030 out, the number will be replaced by 0033670200030 automatically.

To set a Replace Rule via the Web interface:

1) Choose Phone->Dial Plan->Replace Rule.



- 2) Enter the desired *Prefix*, *Replace* string and *Account* through which the call should be sent.
- 3) Press Add button to save the changes.
- 4) You can also delete a specific item from the list by pressing Del button.
- 5) You can select a record to modify, then click Edit button to submit.

Note:

If you need to replace unknown contents you can use (.) or (x) in Prefix field, where "." stands for a string of char, and "x" stands for any single char.

Additionally Prefix content in () will be considered as a variable.

In the Replace field, the first variable is expressed by \$1, the second variable is expressed as \$2, etc.



For example: if you want to replace any number of dialed digits with the same digits but pre-pending an 8, input (.) in Prefix box, and input 8\$1 in Replace box.

Dial Now

Dial-now entries define digit patterns which should be dialed out immediately, without the need for an end or dialing key press.

For example, if a dial now entry is 5xx, when a user dials 534 the call will be sent automatically to the server without waiting for further digits or for a send key or OK key press.

To set a Dial Now using the Web interface:

1) Choose Phone->Dial Plan->Dial Now.

		- <u>-</u> - ,				1.0	Logout
	Status	Account	Network	Phone	Contacts	Upgrade	Security
	Preference	Features Fu	nction Keys	Action URL N	/oice Ring	Tones	Dial Plan
ALCATEL	Replace Rule >> ?						
ATUNKS	Dial-now>> 📍						NOTE
	Index	Dial-now Rule		Accor	unt 🗖	ľ	Identifies a specific
	1				Г		digit (do not use = if
	2				F		key).
	3				F		Contraction of the local distance of the
	4						[digit-digit] Identifies any digit
	5				1		dialed included in
	6				1		the range.
	7				17		[digit-digit.digit]
	8				177		Specifies a range as
	9				17		a comma-separated
	10				17		lise
	Dial-now Rule		Acco	unt			x Matches any single digit/character.
		Add	Edit	Del			
	Area Code>>						Matches an arbitrary
	Block Out>> ?						number of digits.

- 2) Enter the digit pattern Dial-now Rule. Fill in the account to be used to send the call.
- 3) Press Add button to save the changes.
- 4) You can select a record to modify, then click Edit button to submit.
- 5) You can also delete a selected entry from the Dial Now list by pressing Del button.



Note:

A timeout will be waited for before actually sending dialed digits matching the pattern. This timeout can be configured in Phone->Features->Timeout for dial now rule

Area Code

Area codes are also known as Numbering Plan Areas (NPAs). These are necessary (for the most part) only when dialed from outside the code area and from mobile phones. Area codes usually indicate geographical areas within one country, although the correlation to geographical area is becoming obsolete. For non-geographical numbers, as well as mobile telephones outside of the United States and Canada, the "area code" does not correlate to a particular geographic area.

To add the area code via the Web interface:

1) Choose Phone->Dial Plan->Area Code.

		Logout
	Status Account Network Phone Contacts Upgra	de Security
	Preference Features Function Keys Action URL Voice Ring Tones	Dial Plan
ALCATEL	Replace Rule >> ? Dial-now>> ? Area Code>>> Code Min Length(1-15) Max Length(1-15) Account Confirm Cancel Block Out>> ?	 NOTE Digit 0-9 * Identifies a specific digit (do not use * if it is defined as send key). (digit-digit] Identifies any digit dialed included in the range. [digit-digit.digit] Specifies a range as a comma-separated list. x Matches any single digit/character. . Matches an arbitrary

2) Enter the Code, set the Min Length and the Max Length options, the account to be used and then click the Confirm button to save.

Forbidden Numbers (Block Out)

Specific phone numbers or digit patterns can be forbidden to be called out from your phone.

- 54 - / 109



To set Block Out via the Web interface

- 1) Choose Phone->Dial Plan->Block Out.
- 2) Enter the specific digit pattern, and click Add button to save the changes, or choose a specific entry in the list, click Del button to delete the record.
- 3) You can select a record to modify, then click Edit button to submit.

Once a number or digit pattern is included in the Block out list, it will not be possible to dial out a number matching that entry or pattern.

	Status	Account	Network	bone Co	ntacts	Upgrade	Security
	Preference	Features Fu	nction Keys] Actio	in URL Voice	Ring To	nes Dial Pla	an
LCATEL	Replace Rule >>	?					
ATLINES	Dial-now>> ?					NOTE	• • • • • • • • •
	Area Code>>					Digit	0-9 * ifies a snerifir
	Block Out>> ?					digit (it is d	do not use = i lefined as send
	Index	Block Out Numb	er	Account	C	Net Y 3+	
	1				—	[digit	-digit]
	2				17	dialec	included in
	3				1	the ra	nge.
	4					[digit	-digit.digit]
	5				1	Speci	fies a range a
	6				10	a com	ima-separatei
	/				1		
	9				r	× Match	nes any sinole
	10				E	digit/	character.
	Bloc	c Out Number		Account			
						Match	nes an arbitra

Note:

- 1. In the Account field, you can enter 1,2,3..., where "1" represents Account 1, "2" represents Account, etc
- 2. 2, if the account box is empty, this rule will be applicable to all accounts .



Incoming calls

Answering an incoming call

1) Lift the handset or press U button to answer using the speakerphone, or press

<u>∩</u>)button to answer using the headset.

2) If you are already talking on the phone, press the corresponding line key or OK button to answer the new call.

During the conversation, you can alternate between Headset, Handset and Speaker phone by pressing the corresponding buttons or picking up the handset.

Rejecting an incoming call

Press the \bigcirc key to reject an incoming call directly.

DND

When DND function is enabled, all the incoming calls will be rejected and the display shows DND icon; you can find the incoming call record in the Call History.

If you press CONF key in idle mode, you activate or deactivate the DND function.

To configure the DND function via Phone interface:

- 1) Go to ->2.**Features**->8.**DND** and press OK button to enter the configuration interface.
- 2) Use the right or left navigation keys to choose Enable/Disable.
- 3) Press the OK button to save the changes.
- 4) Choose DND option again to deactivate DND mode.

You can also DND function using DND Codes if your IPPBX or server provide this function:

- 1) Go to MENU->2.**Features**->8.**DND** and press OK button to enter the configuration interface.
- 2) Set the DND On Code and the DND Off Code by pressing up or down navigation keys, then press the OK button to save the changes.
- 3) When you select to enable/disable the DND function on the phone, it will send these



codes to the server, and the server will turn on/off the DND function. In this case any calls addressed to the phone's extension will be rejected by the server automatically, and will not be included in the Call Log.

Note:

When DND is locally enabled (not using codes), the corresponding icon will be shown on the display

Call Forward

This feature allows you to divert an incoming call to another phone number e.g. a cell phone or voice mailbox.

The following call forwarding events can be configured:

- *Always:* Incoming calls are immediately forwarded.
- *Busy:* Incoming calls are immediately forwarded when the phone is busy.
- No Answer: Incoming calls are forwarded when the phone is not answered after a

specific time period.

To configure Call Forward via Phone interface:

1) Go to →2.**Features**->1.**Forward**. You can also press → button or a previously configured programmable key to enter the forward setting page directly when the phone is in idle mode.

- 2) There are 3 options: Always, Busy and No Answer.
- 3) Select one of them with OK. Then enter the phone number to which calls must be forwarded. For No answer you can also select the No answer timeout pressing the down key.
- 4) If you prefer the server to perform this function, please enter the On Code and Off Code options, then when you choose to enable the call forward function via your IP phone, it will send the corresponding code to the server, which will take care of forwarding your calls. In this case forwarded calls will not be stored in the Call Log.
- 5) Press the OK button to save the changes.

Notes:

- 57 - / 109



1. When you get an incoming call, if you press during ringing you can dynamically forward the call to a desired number.

2. You can quickly enable/disable Forward by pressing down key or Transfer key from idle mode. Forward type and target number will be the last ones configured using the menu.

3. Only admin/var can set the On/off codes. Make sure the right User Type is active.

4. When Call forward is locally enabled (not through codes), the corresponding icon will be shown on the display

To configure Call Forward via Web interface:

Go to Phone->Features->Forward to do necessary changes. Please refer to above configuration information.

			Logout
	Status Account Net	work Phone Contai	ts Upgrade Security
	Preference Features Function	Keys Action URL Voice	Ring Tones Dial Plan
ALCATEL	Forward: ? Always Target On Code Off Code Busy Target On Code Off Code No Answer After Ring Time(seconds)	Con © Off 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	 NOTE Forward Allows you to divert incoming calls to another phone number, using SIP responses or feature codes. Target Number to which incoming calls will be forwarded. On Code Code that will be
	Target		sent to the sip server to activate this feature
	Off Code	2	Off Code

DND/FWD Synchronisation

This feature requires specific server support. Check with your service provider.

When this function is enabled, DND/FWD status on device and server will be in correspondence.

To set Feature Key Synchronisation via the Web interface:

- 1) Go to Phone->Features-> Feature Key Synchronisation
- 2) Choose whether to enable this function from the pull-down menu.

Temporis IP 200 Administrator Guide

- 58 - / 109



3) Click Confirm to save your change, or Cancel to discard.

Intercom Tone	Enabled	Ţ	?	
Intercom Barge	Enabled	-	?	
Call Completion	Disabled	Ţ	?	
Enable Semi-Attended Transfer	Enabled	-	?	
Blind Transfer OnHook	Enabled	Ţ		
Attend Trans OnHook	Enabled	-		
Transfer on Conference Hang up	Disabled	Ţ		
Feature Key Synchronisation	Disabled	-		
Time Out for Dial-now Rule	Disabled Enabled]		
ACD Auto Available	Disabled	-		
ACD Auto Available Timer (0~120s)	60			
RFC 2543 Hold	Disabled	-		
Use Outbound Proxy In Dialog	Enabled	-		
Process 180	Enabled	-		
Logon Wizard	Disabled	-		
PswPrefix				
PswLength				
PswDial	Disabled	Ţ		
SaveCallHistory	Enabled	•		
Use Logo	Enabled	-	?	
Text Logo	-Orange Group	p-		
Confirm	Cancel			

Intercom

Intercom mode is useful in an office environment as a quick access to connect to the operator or the secretary. In an intercom call the callee's phone will answer automatically without user intervention.

Since intercom is based on some headers in the sip messages you need your server to either support or at least allow (pass through) this feature .

Your set can be configured to accept different levels of Intercom, either through phone or Web interfaces.

To configure Intercom option via phone interface:

1) Go to →->2.**Features**->7.**Intercom**->OK to enter the configuration page. Press up or down navigation keys to display :



- 2) Intercom Allow: To set whether to answer the incoming intercom calls.
- 3) Intercom Mute: To set whether to mute the incoming intercom calls automatically.
- 4) Intercom Tone: To set whether to play ring tones when there is incoming intercom calls to your extension.
- 5) Intercom Barge: To set whether to answer the incoming intercom calls during a conversation. If the option is enabled, when there are incoming intercom calls to your extension, if you are on an intercom conversation, it will refuse the call automatically; or it will put the current call on hold and put the incoming intercom call through.
- 6) Make your selection and use left or right navigation keys to enable or disable the feature.
- 7) Press the OK button to save your changes.

To configure Intercom settings using the web interface:

- 1) Go to Phone->Features and set Intercom related parameters
- 2) Press Confirm to save your changes or Delete to discard.

Note:

To initiate an Intercom call you can either use a function key or speed dial key or directly type a code supported by your PBX. Please see Key Configuration chapter.

Auto Answer

Auto answer allows an incoming call to be answered without requiring any action by the user. This is a useful feature for people who have some kind of impairment. This function is set on a per account basis.

This function should be enabled/disabled by admins or vars.

To set Auto Answer via the IP phone interface:

- 1) Make sure active User type is var or admin.
- 2) Press ->3.**Settings**->2.**Advanced**, enter the password and press OK button
- 3) Then choose 1.**Accounts**->Line X to enter the configuration page, use the up and down navigation keys to choose Auto Answer option.

12.Auto Answer: ¶*Disable

4) Use the left or right navigation keys to enable or disable the auto answer function. The default is **Disable**.

- 60 - / 109



5) Press the OK button to save the changes.

To set Auto Answer via Web interface:

- 1) Go to Account->Basic->Auto Answer option.
- 2) Select Enabled or Disabled in the pull-down menu, click Confirm button to save the change.

CATEL	Account		Account 1			NOTE
Υ ^λ ατινκος	Basic >>	Register Status Account Active Label Display Name Register Name User Name Password SIP Server Enable Outbound Proxy Server Outbound Proxy Server Outbound Proxy Server Transport Backup Outbound Proxy Server NAT Traversal STUN Server Voice Mail Proxy Require Anonymous Call On Code Off Code Anonymous Call Rejection On Code Off Code Missed call log Auto Answer Ring Type	Registered On C Ext 511 John 511 511 0.24.20.91 Disabled UDP 2 Disabled *2 Off C C C C Disabled Disabled C Disabled Disabled Disabled Disabled Disabled Disabled	ff ? ? ? Port 5060 ? Port 5060 ? Port 5060 ? Port 5060 ? Port 3478 ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ?	3	NOTE Display Name SIP service subscriber name used for Caller ID display. Register Name SIP service subscriber I used for authentication. User Name User account provided by VoIP service provider or PBX admin. NAT Traversal Control STUN server settings. Proxy Require Relevant for Nortel server only. If you wish to login a Nortel server, value should be: com.nortelnetworks.firew Codecs Select codec types and priority. Advanced Administrator oriented parameters.

Call log

Temporis IP200 can store up to 100 calls in its Call log. There are 5 different lists:

• All calls

Temporis IP 200 Administrator Guide

- 61 - / 109



- Forwarded calls
- Missed calls 🗸
- Received calls
- Dialed calls 💙

They are accessible using the web interface as described in Contact management chapter. In the next paragraphs we will explain how to access them from the phone interface.

Accessing Call log

You can access the Call log by pressing the left key from idle mode. You will be in the "All calls" list, where calls are sorted sequentially, and each call is marked with the corresponding icon.

To change list use the right key: the sequence is All, Forwarded, Missed, Received, Dialed. Note the icons at the top of the screen which indicate the list you are on.

Accessing Missed Calls list

You can access the Missed calls list directly if, when you have a "Missed call" indication on the display, you press the OK key.

Of course you can also access Missed Calls list by pressing Left navigation key from idle mode to reach Call log and then right navigation key twice as explained above.

When you are in the Missed Calls list you should see \checkmark icon on the screen.

Accessing Dial Calls list

You can access the Dialed calls list directly by pressing the Up navigation key from idle mode.

You can also access this list by pressing Left navigation key to enter the Call Log, and then right navigation key four times as explained above.

When you are in the Missed Calls list you should see \checkmark icon on the screen.



Call list items management

When you are in a call list, you can:

- 1) Dial current entry by pressing OK key, or
- 2) Store it in Directory or Black list by pressing the Phonebook key (see Contacts Management chapter for details), or
- 3) Delete it using C (key

Missed call log enable/disable

It can be defined whether issued calls will be saved in the call history record or not. This function can only be set via the Web interface:

- 1) Go to Account->Basic->Missed call log.
- 2) Choose Enabled or Disabled in the pull-down menu, click Confirm button to save the change.



TEL		Status Account Ne	twork Ph	one Cont	acts U	pgrade Security
	Account		Account 1			+ NOTE
nincs	Basic >>	2.0.72	72C 7. V			Display Name SIP service subscriber name used for Caller ID display.
		Register Status	Registered	Ĩ		
		Account Active	• On C	10#		SIP service subscriber
		Label	Ext 511	-		used for authentication.
		Display Name	John			User Name
		Register Name	511	-		User account provided VoID service provider o
		User Name	511			PBX admin.
		Password	*******		a	NAT Traversal
		SIP Server	10.24.20.91	2060	*	Control STUN server
		Outhound Proxy Server	Disabled		4	settings,
		Transact	1055		- C	Proxy Require
		Transport	I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I		2	only. If you wish to login
		NAT Traversel	Disabled	2	1.5	a Nortel server, value should be:
		STUN Server	Dissoled [Bort 3479	3	com.nortelnetworks.fire
		Voice Mail	1 1 1 2 3	2	-	Codecs
		Proxy Require				Select codec types and
		Anonymous Call	Off	2		priority.
		On Code	[Unit 1	2		Advanced Administrator oriented
		Off Code				parameters.
		Anonymous Call Rejection	Off	2		
		On Code	1.5	2		
		Off Code		2		
		Missed call log	Enabled	2 2		
		- Auto Answer	Disabled	2		
		Ring ⊤yp∈	common	- ?		
	Codecs >>	2				
	Advanced >	5				

During an Active Call

Mute

This function allows you to mute the microphone of phone during a call; you cannot be heard by the other party. You can still hear all other parties while mute is enabled.

To mute/resume the conversation:

Press	\bigcirc button during a conversation to mute the current call, the icon	Ş	will be

shown on the LCD, and the power indication LED will blink. Press \bigcirc again to

- 64 - / 109



unmute the call. When you press 🔽 button all of the conversations will be muted.

Call Hold

This call function allows you to place an active call on hold. In this case your IP PBX might play a melody or message to the other party while waiting. Other calls can be received and made while having a call on hold.

To hold/resume a call:

Press button to put your active call on hold.

During the call, there will be a warning tone every 30 seconds, suggesting that there is a current call in hold state.

If there is only one call on hold, press _____button again to retrieve the call.

If there is more than one call on hold, press the Up/Down navigation keys to select the

desired call, then press button again to retrieve the call.

Note:

When you are under the call hold status, putting down the handset, the conversation will go on over the speaker instead of hanging up the call.

Call Waiting

This call feature allows your phone to accept other incoming calls when there are other active calls.

Handling a waiting call

By default Call Waiting is enabled, and when an incoming call is received during another active call a warning tone will be played periodically.

In this situation, user can:

- 1) Accept the second call using the OK key. The first one will be put on hold automatically. Or
- 2) Reject the call using $\bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc$ button

Call Waiting Configuration



To configure Call Waiting via Phone interface:

- 1) Make sure active User Type is admin or var
- 2) Press ->2.Features->2.Call Waiting.
- 3) Use the left or right navigation keys to enable/disable call waiting feature.
- 4) Use the navigation keys to enable/disable the **Play Tone** option. This option is used to define whether to play a warning tone when there is an incoming call during an active call.
- 5) Press OK button to save the changes, or MENU to return to the previous menu.

To configure Call Waiting via Web interface:

Go to Phone->Features->Call Waiting and perform necessary changes. Refer to previous paragraphs for parameter details.

			Logout
	Status Account Nets	work Phone Contact	s Upgrade Security
	Preference Features Function	Keys Action URL Voice R	ing Tones Dial Plan
ALCATEL	Forward: ?		- NOTE
TATLINES	Always Target On Code Off Code Busy Target On Code Off Code No Answer	Con Coff Con Coff Con Coff Con Coff	Forward Allows you to divert incoming calls to another phone number, using SIP responses or feature codes. Target Number to which incoming calls will be forwarded.
	After Ring Time(seconds) Target On Code Off Code General Information: Max Simultaneous Calls	10 ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ?	On Code Code that will be sent to the sip server to activate this feature. Off Code Code that will be sent to the sip server to deactivate this feature.
	Call Waiting Call Waiting Tone Auto Redial Send Key	Disabled ? Disabled ?	Call Waiting If Call Waiting is enabled your phone will be capable to accept other incomion calls



Call Transfer

This call function allows your phone to transfer an active call to another phone : Blind Transfer, Attended Transfer and Semi-Attend Transfer are supported.

To make a Blind Transfer via phone interface (no prior announcement of the call):

- 1) Press (>) Button during an active call, the call is put on hold.
- Dial the second phone number and press Button or hang up to complete the transfer.

To make an Attended Transfer via phone interface (with prior announcement):

- 1) Press (>) button during an active call. The call is put on hold.
- 2) Dial the second phone number.
- 3) When the call is answered, press to button or hang up to complete the transfer.

To make a Semi-Attended Transfer via phone interface (no prior announcement of the <u>call</u>):

- 1) Press (>) button during an active call. The call is put on hold.
- 2) While third party's phone is ringing, press (t > t) button or hang up.

Note:

Make sure that the SIP server you have registered with supports this function.

3-way Conference

Your Temporis IP200 is able to establish a three-party conference by locally mixing the audio signals of your two correspondents.

To establish a conference via phone interface:

1) Once in line with 1st caller, press a line key, 1st caller is put on hold.



- 2) Dial 2nd party number.
- 3) When in line with 2^{nd} party, press button to establish the conference.
- 4) Hang up to disconnect all parties.

Network Conference

If you want to make a conference with more than three people, you can use a dial in conference server or use network conference if your service provider supports this function.

Note: server support is required. Please check with your service provider .

To enable network conference via web interface:

- 1) Go to Account->Account X->Advanced->Conference Type, there is a pull-down menu, choose network from the list.
- 2) Enter the Conference URI.
- 3) Press Confirm button to save the changes.

Session Timer(seconds)		?
Refresher	Uac 💌	?
Use user=phone	Disabled 💂	?
Voice Encryption (SRTP)	🗂 On 🖲 Off 🛛 🤶	
ptime(ms)	20	?
BLF List URI		?
BLF List Code	*97	
Shared Line	Disabled 💂	?
Dialog-Info Call Pickup	Disabled 💌	?
BLA Number		?
BLA Subscription Period (Scope:60~7200)	300	?
SIP Send MAC	Disabled 💌	?
SIP Send Line	Disabled 💌	?
SIP Registration Retry Timer (Scope:0~1800)(seconds)	30	?
Enable Signal Encode	Disabled 💌	
Signal Encode Key		
Conference Type	Local 💌	
Conference URI	Local	
ACD Subscription Period(120~3600)	3600	
Caller ID Header	FROM .	?
Callee ID Header	PAI-RPID	
Trust SIP servers only	Disabled 💂	

To establish a conference:



- 1) Press key during an active call.
- 2) Dial in the number to conference, then press the OK key
- 3) When the call is answered, press the button.
- 4) After starting a three way conference, press button to enter Conference dialing interface and invite another party to participate in teleconference.
- 5) After starting conference, press Hold key to Hold local call without influencing others in the conference.

Voicemail

Your voice mailbox messages, which are usually stored in your local

or hosted VoIP telephony system, can be accessed from your phone.

New voice messages can be indicated both acoustically and visually as described below:

- The idle screen will indicate the new voice messages.
- button backlight will be on.
- The orange LED of the phone will be steady on
- •

Voicemail settings

To configure the Voicemail code via Phone interface:

- 1) Press ->4.Messages-> 2.Set Voice Mail.
- Use the navigation keys to highlight the Line you want to set, enter the number to connect to your system voicemail. You can press
 Aa3
 to choose the proper input method.

3) Press OK button to save the change, or press MENU to return to the previous menu.

Note:

1. Please contact your system administrator for the connecting code. Different systems have different codes.

2. To benefit from the MWI service in function of your system you may need to subscribe to it. This setting can only be done using the web interface. Contact your system administrator or your service provider for more details.



To configure Voicemail settings using the Web interface:

- 1) Go to Account->Basic and set Voicemail number
- 2) If needed, go to Account->Advanced-> and set Subscribe for MWI and MWI Subscription Period.



Retrieving your Voicemail messages

To check your voicemail status via the Phone interface:

- 1) Press ->4.**Messages**->1. **View Voice Mail**->OK button.
- 2) You can view your messages (new and old messages).
- 3) Choose the account and press the Connect button , then you are able to listen to your new and old messages.

To listen to your new messages via the Phone interface:

- 1) Press button directly.
- 2) You may be prompted to enter the password which is needed to connect to your VoIP telephony system. It depends on your system.

- 70 - / 109



3) Your voice mailbox is called and you are able to listen to your new and old voicemails.

Note:

1. Before retrieving the new voicemail, please make sure that the connecting code has been set on the phone.

2. If you have more than one account set on the phone, when pressing the key you will be calling the active account mailbox.








Advanced Functions

Account Setting

Please refer to "Configuration and Registration" chapter for the basic account setting information. The following table lists the parameters in Advanced Account Setting section of the web interface.

Field Name	Description
UDP Keep-alive Message	Defines whether to activate the phone UDP Keep-alive mechanism. The default is Enabled.
UDP Keep-alive Interval(seconds)	This parameter specifies how often the phone will send a packet to the SIP server. Default is 30 seconds.
Login Expire(seconds)	This parameter specifies the time frequency that phone refreshes its registration. The default interval is 3600 seconds.
Local SIP Port	Local SIP port. The default value is 5060.
RPort	The parameter allows you configuring the proxy to send responses back to a particular address and port. The default is disabled.
SIP Session Timer	This document defines an extension to the Session Initiation Protocol (SIP). This extension allows for a periodic refresh of SIP sessions through a re-INVITE or UPDATE request. The refresh allows both user agents and proxies to determine if the SIP session is still active.
Subscribe Period(seconds)	This parameter sets the period of the subscription. The default value is 3600.
DTMF Type	Select DTMF type.

You can only configure these settings via Web interface:

- 1) Choose Account.
- 2) Select desired account.
- 3) Choose Advanced to do necessary settings.

You can check with your system administrator or service provider for more information.

ed 1.0



TLS

TLS (Transport Layer Security), an IETF standards track protocol(RFC 5246), was based on the earlier SSL specifications developed by Netscape Corporation.

If you make a call based on TLS and SRTP (Set the transport as TLS and the SRTP as On), the phone will display the connecting and ring back interface. If the other party accepts to set the transport as TLS, then the phone will display the icon $\widehat{\mathbf{n}}$.

Go to Account->Basic, choose Transport option, in the pull-down menu, you can choose the TLS option, and then click the Confirm button to save the change.

	-						1.0	Logout
		Status	Account	Network	Phone	Contacts	Upgrade	Security
ALCATEL	Account			Account 1	Ţ		+ NOTE	
ATLINES							Display I	Vame
	Basic >>						SIP ser	rice subscriber
		Register Sta	tus	Registered			display.	ed for Carrer 10
		Account Act	tive	(On	Off		Register	Name
		Label		Ext 511	2		SIP services of the service of the s	vice subscriber ID
		Display Nar	1e	John	2		useu iui	autenocation
		Register Na	me	511	?		User Nar User act	ne count provided by
		UserName		511	2		VoIP se	rvice provider or
		Password		*******	?		PDA aun	110-
		SIP Server		10,24,20.	91 Port S	1060	NAT Tra	versal STUN server
		Enable Outb	ound Proxy Serve	r Disabled	Q		settings	
		Outbound Pr	roxy Server		Port 5	060 ?	Proxy Re	equire
		Transport		UDP	2		Relevan	for Nortel server
		Backup Out	bound Proxy Serve		Port	060 ?	a Nortel	server, value
		NAT Traver	Eal	TLS	1 3		should b	e: reinetworks.firewall
		STUN Serve	-F	DIVS-SKV	Port 3	478 ?	- A	
		Voice Mail		*2	3		Codecs Select c	odec types and
		Proxy Requi	re		?		priority.	
		Anonymous	Call	Off	9		Advance	d
		On Code			3		Adminis	trator oriented
		Off Code			?		Paratiter	E(2)
		A	Coll Datastics	04				

DNS-SRV

DNS-SRV option allows the SIP phone to discover what are the available servers (IP and Transport and priority) for the specified SIP server domain.

To set DNS-SRV via web interface:

Go to Account->Basic-> choose Transport option, in the pull-down menu, you can choose the DNS-SRV option, and then click the Confirm button to save the change.

- 74 - / 109



		- Retenant ()) and	and a sum		
_	(<u> </u>	Status Account Ne	stwork Pho	ne Contacts	Upgrade Security
ALCATEL	Account		Account 1	1	
ATLINES			14 200	,	NOTE
C	Basic >>		-		Display Name SIP service subscriber name used for Caller ID display.
		Register Status	Registered		
		Account Active	• on C	Off	Register Name SID service subscriber ID
		Label	Ext 511	2	used for authentication.
		Display Name	John	2	Users Name
		Register Name	511	?	User account provided by
		UserName	511	2	VoIP service provider or
		Password	*******	?	PBA admin.
		SIP Server	10,24,20,91	Port 5060 ?	NAT Traversal
		Enable Outbound Proxy Server	Disabled	2	settings.
		Outbound Proxy Server		Port 5060 ?	
		Transport	UDP	2	Relevant for Nortel server
		Backup Outbound Proxy Server	UDP	Port 5060 ?	only. If you wish to login to
		NAT Traversal	TCP	2	should be:
		STUN Server	DNS-SRV	Port 3478 2	com.nortelnetworks.firewall
		Voice Mail	*2] ?	Codecs
		Provy Require		2	Select codec types and
		Anonymous Call	Off S	2	humanak
		On Code			Advanced
		Off Code		2	parameters.
		On Code	0#	1 2	

Network Settings

Please refer to chapter "Configuration and Registration" for the Basic Network WAN setting information. In the next paragraphs we will describe other Network related settings: PC Port and Advanced.

PC Port Setting

The following table lists PC Port settings.

Field Name	Description
As Bridge	If you select the Bridge mode, then the two Fast Ethernet ports will be transparent.
As Router	If you select the Router mode, the phone will work as a router.
IP address	Admin can configure the phone's PC port IP address.
Enable DHCP Server	If you set the DHCP server on, the device connected to the PC port will get the IP address automatically between the start IP address and the end IP address. But if you select the bridge mode, the DHCP



	server cannot be enabled.
Start IP Address	DHCP server pool start IP address.
End IP Address	DHCP server pool end IP address.

To configure PC Port settings via Phone interface:

- 1) Make sure active User type is admin or var
- 2) Press ->3.Settings->2.Advanced->OK.
- Enter the password required, scroll to Network option, press OK button and select PC Port option, then press OK button to enter.

- 4) If you choose **Bridge**, it will return to the previous menu.
- 5) If you choose **Router**, you will be prompted to enter the IP, Subnet Mask, DHCP Server Disable/Enable.
- 6) Press OK button to save the changes, or MENU to return to the previous menu.

To configure PC Port via Web interface:

Choose Network->PC Port to do necessary changes. Please note start and end IP address can only be set via Web interface. Check with your system administrator for more information.

Advanced Network Settings

LLDP

The Link Layer Discovery Protocol (LLDP) is a vendor-neutral Layer 2 protocol that allows a network device to advertise its identity and capabilities on the local network.

If LLDP function is enabled the phone will go to try a get related VLAN parameters automatically from the switch. (Synchronous with VLAN in switch)

To configure LLDP settings via Web interface:

Go to Network->Advanced->LLDP->Active option. In the pull-down menu, choose Enable.

Then enter the corresponding Packet Interval in Packet Interval field.



You can also disable this function when you choose disable in active field.

Click Confirm button to save the change.

				. A contra	Logout
	Status	Account	etwork Phone	Contacts	Upgrade Security
		Intern	et Port (WAN) PC P	ort Advanced	
ALCATEL	LLDP ?				
ALING ALING		Active	Disabled 💂		* NOTE
		Packet Interval	Enabled Disabled		A VLAN is a logical
	VLAN ?		(Scoper1~3600s	1)	(or LAN) that
	WAN Port	Active	Disabled		extends beyond a single traditional
		VID		(0-4094)	LAN to a group of LAN segments,
		USRPRIORITY	0	•	given specific configurations.
	PC Port	Active	Disabled 💂		
		VID	0	(0-4094)	QoS Packet tagging
		USRPRIORITY	0	•	intended to provide
	Port Link				time-critical traffic.
		WAN Port Link	auto negotia		i foro o i
		PC Port Link	auto negotia		Define the port to be
	Voice QoS	?			used for voice transmission,
		Voice QoS	40	(0~63)	
		SIP QoS	40	(0~63)	
	Local RTP Pe	ort ?			
		MaxRTPPort	11800	(0~65535)	
		MinRTPPort	11780	(0~65535)	
	SNMP				
		Port		(0~65535)	
		Trusted Address			
	WebServer	2	947 - 174 174		

VLAN

VLAN is a group of hosts with a common set of requirements that communicate as if they were attached to the Broadcast domain, regardless of their physical location.

IP 200 supports 802.1p and q packet tagging. VLAN ID and Priority can be set independently for PC and WAN ports.

To configure VLAN settings via Phone interface:

- 1) Make sure the active User Type is admin or var
- 2) Press ->3.Settings->2.Advanced.
- 3) Enter the password required, scroll to **Network** option, press ok button and select **VLAN**, then press OK to enter.



- 4) Choose **WAN Port** and press OK button to enter.
- 5) Use the left or right navigation keys to choose and set the **VLAN Status**; input the VID Number, Priority.
- 6) Press OK button to save the settings, or MENU to return to VLAN menu.

Follow the same method to set the PC Port option.

To configure VLAN settings via Web interface:

Choose Network->Advanced. Perform necessary changes. Check with your system administrator for more information.

				- FR		<u>e ío</u>	Logout
	Status	Account	Network	Phone	Contacts	Upgrade	Security
		Int	ternet Port (WA	N) PC Port	Advanced		
ALCATEL	LLDP ?						
ATLING		Active	Disa	bled 💂			NOTE
		Packet Interval	120 (Scot	ae:1~3600s)			A VLAN is a logical
	VLAN ?		(6.44)				(or LAN) that
	WAN Port	Active	Disa	bled 💌			single traditional
		VID	0	(0-4	094)		LAN segments,
		USRPRIORITV	0				configurations.
	PC Port	Active	Disa	bled 📮			
		VID	0	(0-4	094)	C F	QoS Packet tagging intended to provide provide priority to
		USRPRIORITY	0	V			
	Port Link						time-critical traffic.
		WAN Port Link	auto	negotia			Local RTP Port
		PC Port Link	auto	negotia			Define the port to be used for voice
	Voice QoS	2					transmission.
		Voice QoS	40	(0~E	3)		
		SIP QoS	40	(0~6	3)		
	Local RTP Po	ort ?					
		MaxRTPPort	1180	0~6	5535)		
		MinRTPPort	1178	80 (O~6	5535)		
	SNMP						
		Port		(0~6	5535)		
		Trusted Address	5				
	WebServer	3					

HTTPS

Temporis IP200 supports HTTPS (Hypertext Transfer Protocol over Secure Socket Layer). Adding SSL layer under HTTP, in short, adds a security layer to HTTP. Admins can set this transmission mode via web page.

To configure HTTPS settings via Web interface:

Go to Network->Advanced, choose WebServer option, in the pull-down menu of Type

ed 1.0



field, choose the transmission mode, then click the Confirm button to save the changes.

802.1X

IEEE 802.1X is an IEEE Standard for port-based Network Access Control (PNAC). It is part of the IEEE 802.1 group of networking protocols. It provides an authentication mechanism to devices wishing to attach to a LAN, either establishing a point-to-point connection or preventing it if authentication fails. It is used for securing wireless 802.1x access points and is based on the Extensible Authentication Protocol (EAP).

This IP phone supports 802.1X. For the details, please consult your system administrator or technical support.

Other Settings

The table below includes other parameters which can be configured in the Advanced section of Network settings web interface.

Field Name	Description
Voice QoS	Set the TOS field value to indicate the network desired priority for voice and signaling packets
Local RTP Port	Define the port range for voice transmission.
WebServer	Users can choose WebServer type: Disable, HTTP, HTTPS, or HTTPS & HTTP.



Voice QoS	?		used for voice transmission.
	Voice QoS	40 (0~63)	
	SIP QoS	40 (0~63)	
Local RTP P	ort ?		
	MaxRTPPort	11800 (0~65535)	
	MinRTPPort	11780 (0~65535)	
SNMP			
	Port	(0~65535)	
	Trusted Address		
WebServer	?		
	HTTP port	80 (1~65535)	
	HTTPS port	443 (1~65535)	
802.1x ?	Туре	HTTP&HTT	
	802.1X Mode	HTTP Only HTTPS Only	
	Identity		
	MD5 Password		
Span to PC p	port		
	Span to PC port	Disabled 💌	
Random Reg	jistration		
	Random Registration	0 (0~60s)	
	Confirm	Cancel	

Note:

For more details of the HTTPS, you can consult with your system administrator.

IP phone also support Internet Protocol Version 6.

Maintenance Tasks

User levels

The phone allows three modes to configure the phone:

User Mode

VAR mode

Administrator Mode

Administrator mode grants unlimited access to the phone configuration on both Web and Phone interface. User Mode is not able to access the settings on the Phone

- 80 - / 109



interface such as: Accounts, Network, Reset to Factory, other advance phone settings. VAR mode grants access to subset of Administrator functions (Login and password are var/var).

Administrator Mode

Administrator mode grants unlimited access to the phone configuration on both web and phone user interface. The administrator/user password is used to access:

Web interface.

The advanced settings of the phone such as Network, Account, Reset to Factory

Settings via the Phone interface.

The default administrator password is **admin**. Meanwhile the user name for Web interface access is **admin**.

To change the administrator password via Phone interface:

- 1) Make sure active User Type is admin
- 2) Press ->3.Settings->2.Advanced->0K->5.Set Password->0K.
- You are prompted to enter the Current PWD, New PWD and Confirm PWD, Press
 Local Ana to change the input method.
- 4) Press OK button to confirm the change, or MENU to return to previous menu.

To change the administrator password via Web interface:

Choose Security->Password->admin, enter the Current, New and Confirm password, click Confirm button to save the changes, or Cancel button to cancel the changes.

To logout via Web interface:

Click the Logout button in the top right corner.

Reboot

You should reboot the phone when you are asked to, e.g. after applying specific changes to phone configuration.

To reboot via Web interface:

- 1) Go to Upgrade->Basic.
- 2) Click Reboot button.

Temporis IP 200 Administrator Guide ed 1.0

- 81 - / 109



3) You are prompted to confirm your request. Press OK to confirm, press Cancel to cancel the operation.

Note:

Please do not power off during reboot, or it will cause the flash memory error.

Reset to Factory

You should reset the phone only in this case: the phone configuration was changed and the phone is not functioning anymore. To maintain the configuration of the phone, you need your system administrator or service provider's advice.

To reset to factory via phone interface:

- 1) Make sure active User Type is admin or var
- 2) Press ->3.Settings->2.Advanced.
- 3) You are prompted to enter the required password.
- 4) Scroll to **Reset Factory** option, then press OK button.
- 5) You are prompted to confirm the change, press OK to reset to factory settings, or MENU to return to previous menu.

It will take a few minutes to reset, please do not power off during resetting, or it will cause flash memory error.

To reset to factory via Web interface:

Choose Upgrade->Basic.

Click Reset button.

You are prompted to confirm the change, press OK to confirm the changes, press Cancel to cancel the operation.

Note:

If you press Confirm all current settings including contact list, call history, account settings, etc will be lost. You need to export the configuration first if you still want to import the old configurations after reset.

Otherwise your phone will have to be configured manually unless mass provisioning is used



Configuration Export/Import

To Export/Import your configuration via Web interface:

- 1) Go to Upgrade->Advanced, select Import/Export Config, click Export button to export the file to your local computer.
- 2) Choose Upgrade->Advanced, select Import/Export Config, click Browse button, select the specific configuration file in your local computer, click Import button.
- 3) It will take a few minutes to reset, please do not power off during resetting, or it will cause flash memory error.

WatchDog

When 'WatchDog' function is 'Enabled', phone will auto reboot after 10 seconds if any process in the phone crashes. When the function is disabled, the phone will not reboot.

Configure watchdog via web interface:

Choose phone-> Preference->WatchDog, in the pull-down menu, choose enable or disable this function.





			Logout	
	Status Account Net	work Phone Contacts Upgr	ade Security	
	Preference Features Function	Keys Action URL Voice Ring Tones	Dial Plan	
ALCATEL	WEB Language	English 💂 ?	ANOTE	
ATLINES	DHCP Time	Disabled 💂	Time Zone	
	Time Zone	+1 Albania(Tirane) 💂 💡	Choose the time	
	Primary NTP Server	europe.pool.ntp.org 💙	NTD Conver	
	Secondary NTP Server	europe.pool.ntp.org 🤨	Server from which	
	Update Interval(seconds)	1000 ?	time information will be retrieved.	
	Daylight Saving Time	Automatic -	Update Interval	
	Fixed Type	C By Date C By Week	synchronizations	
	Start Month	March	with the NTP server.	
	Start Day of Week	Sunday	Daylight Saving Time Activate summer	
	Start Week	Last In Month	time policy.	
	Start Hour of Day	2	Manual Time Enable/disable to	
	End Month	October +	set time manually.	
	End Day of Week	Sunday 🚽	Ring Tone Ringtones to be	
	End Week	Last In Month	uploaded must be in way format (8K	
	End Hour of Day	3	sampling rate, mono,	
	Offset(minutes)	60	compression)	
	Manual Time	Disabled 🚽 🤶		
	Time Format	24 Hour 🗨 ?		
	Live Dialpad	Disabled 💂 ?		
	Inter Digit Time(1~14)(seconds)	4 ?		
	Flash Hook Time(<800ms)	1 ?		
	Keyboard Lock	Disabled 💽 🥊		
	WatchDog	Enabled		
	Ring Type	Disabled Del ?		
	Upload Ringtone	Parcourir		
	Confirm	Upload Cancel Cancel		

Action URL/URI

Action URL: when an operation takes place, the phone will send an http GET request to configured URL.

The events that can be recorded include: Setup Completed, Log On, Log Off, Register Failed, Off hook, On hook...etc.

To set Action URL via web interface:

Choose Phone->Action URL

Enter the Corresponding contents

Click Confirm to save the changes.

	÷.	-			<u> </u>	- 1.		Logout
	Status	Account	Network	Phone	Contacts	Upgra	ide Securit	TV.
	Preference	Features	Function Keys	Action URL	Voice Ring	Tones	Dial Plan	K
LCATEL	Setup Completed							

Action URI: Remote control commands which can be used to generate CTI applications using Temporis IP200.

Please ask your Technical Support for more details on these features.

Firmware Update and Autoprovisioning

The phone is delivered with pre-installed firmware. If you require updating the phone's firmware, please contact your system administrator. You can only update the firmware via Web interface.

To update the firmware manually via Web interface:

Choose Upgrade->Basic->Browse; select the firmware file in your local computer.

Click Upgrade button to update the new firmware.

Please do not power off during the updating.

Temporis IP 200 Administrator Guide ed 1.0



To update the firmware and configuration automatically via Web interface or using the phone GUI you will need to set up an Autoprovision environment

Note:

Please check with your Technical Support for the Autoprovisioning guide.

To launch Autoprovisioning using web interface:.

- Choose Upgrade->Advanced. Configure necessary settings: Custom Option, Custom Option Type, URL, Account, Password, Common AES Key and MAC-Oriented AES Key, PNP config and Check New Config.
- 2) Click Confirm button, the phone will check the server for a new firmware in a specific time, and will update automatically if there is new firmware.
- 3) You can also update the firmware immediately by pressing Autoprovision button.

Set Auto Provision via phone interface:

Go to ->3.Settings->2.Advanced ->7. Auto Provision->OK.

Enter the URL, User Name and Password (optional).

Click OK key to save the changes and launch Autoprovision.

Note:

- 1. Any power interruption during the subsequent process will most likely lead to a flash memory error. As a result the system cannot boot up anymore. The procedure can be only conducted in Administrator Mode.
- 2. If the updating is failed, you can re-plug the power adaptor, and press the Speaker key for 3 seconds, the IP phone will enter the account configuration interface. Users can reconfigure the IP phone account information here, and then press the OK button to save the changes.
- 3. The upgrade priority is PNP, Custom Option, DHCP options, preconfigured URL .

4.

Decryption

Your Temporis IP 200 supports configuration file encryption for provisioning. In case encryption is used, AES key needs to be configured on the phone.

- 86 - / 109



Set AES key via Web interface:

Choose Upgrade->Advanced->Fill in either common AES Key or MAC-oriented AES Key. The parameters to fill in depend on the files you're using for provisioning. Contact your service provider or check with your technical support. Then click the Confirm button as shown below.

			í.	Logout
	Status Account N	etwork Phone	Contacts Upg	rade Security
		Basic Advanced TR	069	
ALCATEL				
A	Custom DHCP Option(128 ~ 2	54)	2	* NOTE
() Muna	Option Type	String		Custom DHCP Option
	URL		2	Option to use for
	Account		?	provisioning, Refer
	Password		2	Manual for details
	Common AES Key		3	about provisioning.
	MAC-Oriented AES Key		2	AES Key
	Zero Active	Disabled 💂		ISP.
	WaitTime	5		Click this button to
	PNP Config	Enabled 💌		launch
	Check New Config	Disabled 🚽		autoprovisioning immediately
	Click this button to auto provis immediately	Auto provision	?	Click this button to launch autoprovision immediately.
	Export / Import Config	P	arcourir ?	Export/Import
		Import Expor	t	ConfigBackup your settings in a
	Export System Log	Local 🗶 🤶		with Export. You can
		Export		retrieve these settings later with Import.
	PCAP Trace	Start Stop	Export ?	
	Confirm	Cancel		System Log Two methods are supported for the system log, Local or External Server.

Note:

You can ask your system administrator for the decrypt password.

Set AES Key via phone interface:

Go to ->3.Settings->2.Advanced->6.Set AES Key->OK.

1. Common: 2aB

Enter the Common AES and the MAC-oriented option.

Press the OK button to save the changes.



Zero-Active Interface

Zero-sp-touch function can help users to configure Auto provisioning and network parameters quickly.

If this feature is enabled, whenever the set powers on or a pre-assigned Function Key is pressed, the phone will turn to the Zero-Active interface.

Turn on Zero-Active via web interface:

1) Choose Upgrade->Advanced-> Zero Active, in the pull-down menu, choose enable to turn on this function.

	Status Account Netwo	ork Phone Contacts	Upgrade Security
	Ba	sic Advanced TR069	1 million (1997)
ALCATEL			
ATUNES	Custom DHCP Option(128 ~ 254)	INOTE
() Muma	Option Type	String 🥊 ?	Custom DHCP Option
	URL	3	Option to use for
	Account	3	provisioning, Refer
	Password	2	Manual for details
	Common AES Key		about provisioning.
	MAC-Oriented AES Key	3	AES Key
	Zero Active	Disabled	ISP.
	WaitTime	Enabled	Click this botton to
	PNP Config	Enabled 🚽 ?	launch
	Check New Config	Disabled 💽 📍	autoprovisioning immediately
	Click this button to auto provision immediately	Auto provision	Click this button to launch autoprovision immediately.
	Export / Import Config	Parcourir ?	Furnant/Terrant
		Import Export	ConfigBackup your settings in a
	Export System Log	Local 🗨 ?	with Export, You can
		Expert	retrieve these settings later with Import.
	PCAP Trace	Start Stop Export ?	System Lon
	Confirm	Cancel	Two methods are supported for the system log, Local or External Server

2) Click Confirm to save.

Once the phone enters into Zero-Active interface (at power on or due to a specific function key press), a countdown screen will be shown first.

If no operation is done nor Cancel key is pressed the phone will revert into normal idle interface at the end of the countdown.

If OK key is pressed prior to the end of the countdown, the phone will enter into a

- 88 - / 109



network setting interface.

Press OK key again to enter an AutoP setting interface. Enter the corresponding contents and press OK key to save the settings or press MENU key return to previous menu.

If you have pressed OK, autoprovisioning will be launched with the parameters you just configured.

System Log Export

If some errors happen in your phone, you can export the system log and send it to your system administrator for diagnosis.

To export the System Log via web interface:

Choose Upgrade->Advanced, select Export System Log, if the type is Local, it will export the syslog directly; if the type is server, it will export the syslog to the specified server.

Set the desired debug level for the System Log

Click Export button to export the file

PCAP Trace Export

The PCAP Trace is used to record the data packets at the WAN port of your phone. If some errors happened in your phone, you can export the PCAP trace and send to your system administrator for diagnosis.

To export the PCAP Trace via web interface:

Choose Upgrade->Advanced. Select PCAP Trace option, click Start button to launch Wireshark capture. Click Stop to stop Wireshark capture, and then click Export to export the file to your local computer.

Keys configuration

Send Key configuration

Admins can set a specific button ("#" or "*") as the send key. If this feature is enabled, once you've dialed the desired number, you can press this send key to call your correspondent immediately.

- 89 - / 109



Please check Send Key configuration in Basic Calls chapter for a complete description.

Programmable keys

The keys from 0-9 (memory keys), navigation keys and function keys on the keypad are editable. Users can customize specific features for these keys according to their needs. (The programmable keys are only available when the phone is in idle mode).

Default configuration for idle mode is:

Up key: access to redial list Down key: access to call forward Left key: access to call log Right key: access to account switch Ok key: access to status Conf key: access to DND Transfer key: access to call forward

This function can only be set via the Web interface:

Choose Phone->Function Keys->Programmable Key.

	Stat	us Account	Network	Phone	Contacts	Upgrad	e Security
	Prefi	erence Features	Function Keys	Action URL	Voice Ring	Tones	Dial Plan
CATEL	Memory Ke	v>> ?					-
ATUNKS	122 122 23						NOTE
	Line Key >	> 1					
	Programm	ableKeys >> ?					
	Key	Type	Line		Extension		
				terminal land			
	Up	Redial	Auto	4			
	Up Down	Redial N/A Directory	Auto				
	Up Down Left	Redial , N/A Directory History	Auto Auto Auto				
	Up Down Left Right	Redial N/A Directory History DND Menu	Auto Auto Auto Auto				
	Up Down Left Right	Redial N/A Directory History DND Menu SwitchAccount Econard	Auto Auto Auto Auto				
	Up Down Left Right OK	Redial N/A Directory History DND Menu SwitchAccount Forward Redial	Auto Auto Auto Auto Auto				
	Up Down Left Right OK Cancel	Redial N/A Directory History DND Menu SwitchAccount Forward Redial Call Return	Auto Auto Auto Auto Auto Auto				
	Up Down Left Right OK Cancel CONF	Redial N/A Directory History DND Menu SwitchAccount Forward Redial Call Return Pick Up Status	Auto Auto Auto Auto Auto Auto Auto				
	Up Down Left Right OK Cancel CONF Hold	Redial N/A Directory History DND Menu SwitchAccount Forward Redial Call Return Pick Up Status Speed Dial Local PhoneBook	Auto Auto Auto Auto Auto Auto Auto Auto				

Choose and customize specific features for these keys.

ed 1.0



Click Confirm button to save the changes.

Line keys Configuration

The phone has 2 line keys to which functions can be assigned out of a list of 28 functions. The following list shows the functions you can set on the Line keys. The next paragraphs provide a description for each function. The default configuration for each key is Line.

BLF Line Speed Dial Intercom **URL** Record Shared Line Conference Forward Transfer Hold DND Redial Call Return Pick Up Call Park Group Listening Voice Mail DTMF Public Hold Private Hold Group Pick up Paging Record



BLF List

Prefix

Zero-Active

ACD

Local PhoneBook

Note:

Many of those features require IP PBX or service provider support and hence must be configured in the server first in order to work on your phone. Contact your system administrator or Technical support for more details.

In addition, please note that not all the servers support the just above mentioned features

BLF

Busy Lamp Field (BLF) allows you to monitor the status (idle, ringing, or busy) of other SIP accounts. User can dial out on a BLF configured key.

To assign the key as BLF via web interface:

- Choose Phone->Function Keys->Line Key. Choose one of the keys on which you want to make the assignment. , Note there is a pull-down menu in the Type field. Choose BLF from the list.
- 2) Enter the number you want to monitor in the Value field,
- 3) In the "Line" field, select a line for which to apply this key.
- 4) And then enter the feature code for call capture in the extension field.
- 5) Press Confirm button to save the changes.

Please refer to "LEDs" chapter for more details about the LED status in different situation.

Note:

1. In the Web interface, you can also set the pickup number to activate the pickup function. For example, if you set the BLF number as 212, and the pickup number is *83, then when there is an incoming call to 212, press the BLF key, it will call out the *83 automatically to pick up the incoming call on 212.

2. Not all servers support BLF. Please check with your service provider or system administrator





BLF List

BLF list is a function which can monitor group status versus one to one monitoring in conventional BLF. Information feedback from the server will indicate which BLF list will monitor which account.

To set BLF List via web interface:

- 1) Choose Account->Advanced-> BLF List URI, enter the BLF List URI.
- 2) Then enter the BLF List Code in the BLF List Code field.
- 3) Click the Confirm button to save.

To assign BLF List to a function key via web interface:

- Choose Phone->Function Keys->Line Key, choose one of the keys on which you want to make the assignment. Note there is a pull-down menu in the Type field, choose BLF List from the list.
- 2) In the "Line" field, select a line for which to apply this key.
- 3) Press Confirm button to save the changes.

Note:

This feature is not supported by all servers. Please check with your service provider or system administrator

Line

The most frequent usage for line keys is assigning them one of the two possible user accounts for call management.

To assign the key as Line via web interface:

Choose Phone->Function Keys->Line Key, choose one of the line key on which you want to make the assignment. Note there is a pull-down menu in the Type field: choose Line from the list, and press Confirm button to save the changes.

Speed Dial

You can configure the key as a simplified speed dial key. This key function allows you to easily access the most frequently dialed numbers.

To assign the key as Speed Dial via web interface:

1) Choose Phone-> Function Keys -> Line Key, choose one of the keys on which you want to make the assignment, there is a pull-down menu in the Type field, choose

- 93 - / 109



Speed Dial from the list.

- 2) Enter the number you want to perform Speed Dial in the Value field.
- 3) In the "Line" field, select a line for which to apply this key.
- 4) Press Confirm button to save the changes.

Intercom

Intercom is useful in office environments as a quick access to connect to the operator or the secretary.

To configure a function key as Intercom via web interface:

- Choose Phone-> Function Keys -> Line Key, choose one of the keys on which you want to make the assignment, there is a pull-down menu in the Type field, and choose Intercom from the list.
- 2) Enter the extension number you want to intercom in the Value field.
- In the "Line" field, select a line for which to apply this key, the default one is Line
 1.
- 4) Press Confirm button to save the changes.

Note:

- 1. Your VoIP PBX must support this feature.
- 2. Please make sure the Intercom Allow is enabled.

URL Record

This is a server specific function that allows you to record your conversation by pressing a preconfigured function key.

When you are in conversation, press function key to start the recording process of the current call.

Press the function key again to disable the recording function

Follow the voice prompts to listen to the recording.

To assign a Line key as URL Recorder via web interface:

Choose Phone-> Function Keys -> Line Key, choose one of the keys on which you want to make the assignment, there is a pull-down menu in the Type field, choose URL Record from the list.





Enter the url and condition code in the Value field.

Press Confirm button to save the changes.

Note:

1. During a conversation, press the dedicated line key to start the recording process; if the other party hangs up, your phone will turn to the idle status.

2. This feature is supported by specific servers only . Please check with your service provider.

Shared Line

The server-specific Shared Line Appearances (SLA, which is also named as BLA) feature allows subscribers to share SIP lines and also provides status monitoring of the shared line. When a user places an outgoing call using such an appearance, all members belonging to that particular SLA group are notified of this usage and are blocked from using this line appearance until the line goes back to idle state or when the call is placed on hold.

Similarly all members of the SLA group are notified of an incoming call and the call can be picked up on a line appearance associated with the SLA extension.

To assign the key as Shared Line via web interface:

Choose Phone->Function Keys->Line Key, choose one of the keys on which you want to make the assignment, there is a pull-down menu in the Type field, choose Shared Line from the list.

Enter the condition code in the Value field.

In the "Line" field, select a line for which to apply this key, the default one is Line 1.

Press Confirm button to save the changes.

Note:

This service is supported by specific servers only. Please check with your service provider

Conference

You are allowed to configure the Line key to be used as a conference key while remaining in the current call. This key allows a user on a call to conference another party while remaining in the conference.

To assign the key as Conference via web interface:



Choose Phone-> Function Keys -> Line Key, choose one of the keys on which you want to make the assignment, there is a pull-down menu in the Type field, choose Conference from the list.

Press Confirm button to save the changes.

Forward

Two use cases can be considered for this function. If a key is configured as Forward key:

- When you press this key during an incoming call, you will be able to divert this call directly. Depending on your configuration you will be prompted to enter target number, or stored value will be used. This function can be used, for example, to divert certain calls to your voicemail
- When you press it in idle status the IP phone will enter the forward interface. In this case you will be able to enable CF and set the phone number to which calls must be forwarded if it had not been set previously. Forward type will be the latest used.. By pressing the key again CF will be disabled.

To assign the key as Forward via web interface:

- Choose Phone-> Function Keys -> Line Key, choose one of the keys on which you want to make the assignment, there is a pull-down menu in the Type field, choose Forward from the list.
- 2) Enter the extension number you want to forward to in the Extension field. (For forward on ringing scenarios)
- 3) Press Confirm button to save the changes.

Transfer

You are able to configure a key as a transfer key to perform the Blind/Attended/Semi-Attended Transfer. The main difference with Transfer hard key is in this case you can pre-configure the number to which transfer will be performed. This is very useful when there is a limited number of numbers to which you usually transfer your calls.

To assign the key as Transfer via web interface:

- Choose Phone-> Function Keys -> Line Key, choose one of the keys on which you want to make the assignment. From the pull-down menu in the Type field select Transfer.
- 2) Enter the Number in the "Value" field. In this case, when you are on a conversation,



if you press this key the phone will blind transfer to that number. If you leave it blank the key will behave as transfer hard key.

3) Press Confirm button to save the changes.

Hold

The key can be configured as a hold key. You can use this key to hold and retrieve a call during the conversation.

To assign the key as Hold via web interface:

Choose Phone-> Function Keys -> Line Key, choose one of the keys on which you want to make the assignment, there is a pull-down menu in the Type field, choose Hold from the list.

Press Confirm button to save the changes.

DND

If the key is configured as DND key, it will work as a toggle key to enable/disable this service.

Please check DND chapter in the Incoming calls section of Basic Call Functions chapter for more information about this function.

To assign DND to a key via web interface:

- Choose Phone-> Function Keys -> Line Key, choose one of the keys on which you want to make the assignment. From the pull-down menu in the Type field select DND.
- 2) Press Confirm button to save the changes.

Redial

If a key is configured as Redial key:

- If you press this key in idle status, it will enter the Dialed Calls interface
- If you press this key in off hook mode, last dialed number will be sent directly
- If you press this key when there is an active call, it will be put on hold and a new call sent to the last dialed number

To assign Redial to a key via web interface:

1) Choose Phone-> Function Keys -> Line Key. Choose one of the keys on which you want to make the assignment. From the pull-down menu in the Type field select

ed 1.0

- 97 - / 109



Redial.

2) Press Confirm button to save the changes.

Call Return

Call Return function dials out the last number from which you received a call.

If there is already an active call, when pressing Call Return key the first call will be put on hold and a new one will be sent to the Call Return number

To assign Call Return to a key via web interface:

- Choose Phone-> Function Keys -> Line Key. Select the key on which you want to make the assignment. From the pull-down menu in the Type field choose Call Return.
- 2) Press Confirm button to save the changes.

Pick Up

Pickup key allows you to perform call capture from another ringing station with a single key press. This feature is not supported by all servers. Please check with your service or IP PBX provider for more details.

To assign Pick Up to a key via web interface:

- Choose Phone-> Function Keys -> Line Key. Select the key on which you want to make the assignment. From the pull-down menu in the Type field choose Pick Up option.
- 2) Enter the feature code for call capture (for example, input *78345, *78 is the feature code and the 345 is the extension number you want to pickup,) in the Value field.
- 3) In the "Line" field, select a line for which to apply this key.
- 4) Press Confirm button to save the changes.

Call Park

Call Park is a feature that allows a person to put a call on hold at one telephone set and continue the conversation from any other telephone set. Your server needs to support this feature. Please check with your service provider or IP PBX vendor for more details.

The "call park" feature is activated by pressing a preprogrammed button or a special sequence of buttons. When the conversation which is monitored was transferred to an unused extension number, you can press this key to retrieve the call.



To assign the key as Call Park via web interface:

- Choose Phone-> Function Keys -> Line Key, choose one of the keys on which you want to make the assignment, there is a pull-down menu in the Type field, and choose Call Park from the list.
- 2) Enter the number you want to park in the Value field.
- 3) In the "Line" field, select a line for which to apply this key.
- 4) Press Confirm button to save the changes.

Group Listening

When the key is configured as Group Listening key, you are allowed to enable the Speakerphone and Handset/Headset mode at the same time. It is suitable for a group conversation which has more than one person at one side. You are able to speak and listen using handset/headset; meanwhile the others nearby can listen using speakerphone. You can get back to the previous mode by pressing the key again. (If the current mode is handset or headset, users can press the speaker button to open or close the group listening function)

To assign the key as Group Listening via web interface:

- Choose Phone->Function Keys-> Line Key, choose one of the keys you want to make the assignment, there is a pull-down menu in the Type field, and choose Group Listening from the list.
- 2) Press Confirm button to save the changes.

Voice Mail

When the key is configured as Voicemail key you are allowed to access voicemail quickly by pressing this key.

To assign the key as Voice Mail via web interface:

- Choose Phone-> Function Keys -> Line Key, choose one of the keys on which you want to make the assignment, there is a pull-down menu in the Type field, choose Voice Mail from the list.
- 2) Enter the number you want to set as the voice mail box in the Value field.
- 3) In the "Line" field, select a line for which to apply this key.
- 4) Press Confirm button to save the changes.

DTMF



With this function you will be able to send out the desired DTMF number during the conversation. The number needs to be set in advance. You can use it for example to provide some inputs to frequently used IVRs, or to launch voice recording in Asterisk environments

To assign the key as DTMF via web interface:

- Choose Phone-> Function Keys -> Line Key, choose one of the keys on which you want to make the assignment, there is a pull-down menu in the Type field, and choose DTMF from the list.
- 2) In the "Value" field, enter the specific number.
- 3) Press Confirm button to save the changes.

Public Hold

This is a feature supported by some specific servers.

You can configure a key for Public Hold. During a conversation, all members belonging to that particular BLA group can use this key to hold or retrieve a call.

To assign the key as Public Hold via web interface:

- Choose Phone-> Function Keys ->Line Key. Select the key on which you want to make the assignment. From the pull-down menu in the Type field choose Public Hold.
- 2) Press Confirm button to save the changes.

Private Hold

This is a feature supported by some specific servers.

You can configure a key for Private Hold. During a conversation, all members belonging to a particular BLA group can use this key to hold the call, but only the initiator can retrieve the call.

Please check with your service provider.

To assign the key as Private Hold via web interface:

- Choose Phone-> Function Keys ->Line Key, choose one of the keys on which you want to make the assignment, there is a pull-down menu in the Type field, and choose Private Hold from the list.
- 2) Press Confirm button to save the changes.



Group Pick up

Group Pickup key allows you to perform call capture from any ringing station which belongs to a Capture Group, with a single key press. This feature is not supported by all servers. Please check with your service or IP PBX provider for more details.

To assign the key as Group Pick Up via web interface:

- Choose Phone-> Function Keys -> Line Key. Select the key on which you want to make the assignment. From the pull-down menu in the Type field choose Group Pick Up option.
- 2) Enter the feature code (for example, *78) in the Value field.
- 3) In the "Line" field, select a line for which to apply this key.
- 4) Press Confirm button to save the changes.

Paging

This feature has to be supported by the server. Check with your service provider or IP PBX vendor.

When you configure a key as Paging key and press this key, the phone will dial configured code or number to invoke Paging.

To assign the key as Paging via web interface:

- Choose Phone-> Function Keys -> Line Key. Select the key on which you want to make the assignment. From the pull-down menu in the Type field choose Paging option.
- 2) Enter the number or feature code you want to dial out directly in the Value field.
- 3) In the "Line" field, select a line for which to apply this key.
- 4) Press Confirm button to save the changes.

Record

Call recording is a server function invoked by the phone when the Record key is pressed. The phone requests the server to record the active conversation. It is supported by specific servers and is implemented using SIP INFO messages. Please check with your service provider or IP PBX vendors.

By pressing Record key the server should start recording, and by pressing it again recording should stop. Please pay attention to the maximum recording time and frequency your server is able to handle..



To assign the key as Record via web interface:

- Choose Phone-> Function Keys -> Line Key. Select the key on which you want to make the assignment. From the pull-down menu in the Type field choose Record option.
- 2) Press Confirm button to save the changes.

Prefix

When you press a key in which prefix function has been set up, the phone will automatically dial the prefix and you will only have to dial the rest of your correspondent number to call him out. Prefix can only be assigned to the line keys.

To assign the key as Prefix via web interface:

- Choose Phone-> Function Keys -> Line Key. Select the key on which you want to make the assignment. From the pull-down menu in the Type field choose Prefix, and enter the number you want to show up on the dial interface in the Value field.
- 2) Press Confirm button to save the changes

Zero-Active

When you press a Function Key which has been set as Zero-Active, the phone will launch Zero-Active interface. Please check section "Zero-Active" section in Maintenance Tasks chapter for more details.

To assign a key as Zero-Active via web interface:

- Choose Phone-> Function Keys -> Line Key. Select the key on which you want to make the assignment. From the pull-down menu in the Type field choose Zero-Active.
- 2) Press Confirm button to save the changes

ACD

ACD (Automatic Call Distribution) aims at having incoming calls distributed automatically to different extensions according to their availability stages. To perform this function, you have to assign previously this feature to a Line key. This feature is supported by some specific servers. Please check with your service provider or PBX vendor for details.

To use ACD:

1) Press line Key. A login box will pop up. Enter the User ID and Password and click

- 102 - / 109



OK button to login.

- 2) Press line Key again to enter in the ACD page, press OK button to change the Available/Unavailable status.
- 3) You can press <u>c</u> button to logout.
- 4) Press MENU key to cancel the operation
- 5) When your status is Available, calls will be directed to your phone. When the status is unavailable, calls will not be directed to your phone.

To assign the key as ACD via web interface:

- 1) Choose Phone-> Function Keys ->Line Key. Select the key on which you want to make the assignment. From the pull-down menu in the Type field choose ACD.
- 2) In the "Line" field, select a line for which to apply this key.
- 3) Press Confirm button to save the changes

Note:

ACD is not available on all call servers. For more information, contact your system administrator.

Local PhoneBook

The Line keys can be configured as Local PhoneBook key. Then pressing this key when in idle status, you can enter the Local PhoneBook interface, and more in particular you can choose to access directly one of your Groups.

To assign the key as Local PhoneBook via web interface:

- Choose Phone-> Function Keys ->Line Key. Select the key on which you want to make the assignment. From the pull-down menu in the Type field choose Local PhoneBook.
- 2) In the Line field, choose a Group.
- 3) Press Confirm button to save the changes.



Trouble shooting

I cannot register to the server

Check the IP address (press OK key for status). If you set your WAN port in DHCP mode, please make sure there is an available DHCP server.

Check your gateway.

Check your DNS server.

Make sure your account information is the same as you got from your service provider.

Check whether the SIP server is on.

Check the SIP register port, the default value is 5060.

I can't get an IP address

Make sure you have plugged the Ethernet cable into the WAN port.

Make sure there is an available DHCP server on, and there are available IP addresses in the server.

Try to set your WAN port to static IP client mode.

During a call, I cannot hear any voice

Make sure your handset is tightly connected with the phone.

Check whether you have muted the conversation or not.

Consult the outbound server details with your service provider.

I have problems to send DTMF digits during calls

Check which kind of DTMF you are using, and whether it is compatible with the server.

Consult the payload value with your service provider.

Time and date are not correct

Select the right time zone or enter the time information manually on the webpage or the phone.

- 104 - / 109



Check your DST settings.

How to answer the incoming calls during a call?

If a call comes in when you are in a conversation, press OK key to answer the incoming call.

How to refuse incoming calls during a call?

To refuse current incoming call press \bigcirc key.

To refuse all incoming calls that may arrive when you are in a conversation you can turn off call waiting function.

How to update the firmware?

Enter the webpage of your phone, go to Upgrade, then you can find the option" Select and Upgrade Firmware" at the bottom of the page.

1) Select the file to update, and then click the Upgrade button.

Note:

Make sure the firmware you choose is provided by your service provider, or the device will probably crash after the update.

How to auto provision?

Consult auto provision server address with your service provider and ask your technical support for details.

ed 1.0



Appendix A.

Line Key configuration menu

1.Type: Speed dial	•	1.Type: Intercom	•	1.Type: Line	•	1.Type: BLF	•	1.Type: BLF List	•	1.Type: Shared LIne	1.Type: URL Rec	•	1.Type: ACD	•
¥		¥		¥		¥		¥		¥	¥		¥	
2.Account ID		2.Account ID		2.Account ID		2.Account ID		2.Account ID		2.Account ID	2.URL		2.Account ID	
¥		¥		¥		¥				¥				
3.Value		3.Value		3.User (R/O)		3.Value				3.Value				
				¥		↓								
				4.Server (R/O)		4.Extension								



1.Type: Key Event															
¥															
2.Key type: Call Return	→	2.Key type: Pickup	•	2.Key type: Call Park	>	2.Key type: DTMF	•	2.Key type: Voicemail	→	2.Key type: Group Listening	•	2.Key type: Zero-Active	→	2.Key type: Prefix	•
		+		•		↓ ↓		•						¥	
		3.Account		3.Account		3.Value		3.Account						3.Value	
		•		•				•							
		4.Value		4.Value				4.Value							

2.K type: group Pickup	→	2.K type: Paging	→	2.K type: Record	→	2.Key type: Local Group	→	2.K type: Conf	→	2.K type: FWD	→	2.K type: Transfer	→	2.K type: Hold	→	2.Key type: DND	→	2.Key type: Redial	•
¥		¥		¥		¥				¥		↓ ↓							
3.Account		3.Account				3.Local Group				3.Value		3.Value							
¥		¥				¥													
4.Value		4.Value																	



Memory Key configuration menu

1.Type: Speed dial	•	1.Type: Intercom	>	N/A	•	1.Type: Key Event				
¥		¥				¥				
2.Account		2.Account				2.Key type: Call Return	+	2.Key type: Paging	→	2.Key type: Redial
¥		•						•		
3.Value		3.Value						3.Account		
								•		
								4.Value		


© ATLINKS 2011 - Reproduction prohibited. The manufacturer reserves the right to modify the specifications of its products in order to make technical improvements or comply with new regulations.

ALCATEL, TEMPORIS and ATLINKS are registered trademarks.

The Alcatel logo and Alcatel name are trademarks of Alcatel and used under license by ATLINKS.

You can download the latest user manuals from our website:

http://www.atlinks.com

ed 1.0

